
  
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 7, 2014 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

April 15, 2014, Regular Meeting 
April 15, 2014, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE MAY 7, 2014 AGENDA  9 
5:35 4  BOARD OF EDUCATION’S REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS MS. LY MARZE 11 
5:40 5  APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY REQUEST MR. JONATHAN ALLEN 13 
5:45 6  PROPOSED AUDIT CONTRACT FOR FY 2014 MS. KATHY MITCHELL 57 
5:50 7  MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A. Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing and 
Striping Project 

B. Bid Award Request for Appalachian Enterprise 
Center Renovation Project 

C. Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural 
Services 

D. Contract Renewal Request for Parks and 
Recreation Weekend Janitorial Services 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
75 

 
99 

 
117 

 
123 

5:55 8  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 
C. Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
127 
129 
131 

6:00 9  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Presentation of the FY 2015 Capital Improvement 

Plan (CIP) 
B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2015 

Recommended Budget 
C. Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and 

Workers Compensation Renewals Request 
D. Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot  
E. Boards & Commissions 
F. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
133 

 
135 

 
137 

 
143 
145 
155 

6:05 10  PUBLIC COMMENT  158 
 7:05 11  BREAK  158 
 7:10 12  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

 158 

 7:30 13  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
April 15, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes 
April 15, 2014, Closed Session Minutes 
 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, APRIL 15, 2014 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
April 15, 2014, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
  
  PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 

David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 

John Welch, Commissioner 
Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Stacey “Four” Eggers, IV, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Yates led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the April 1, 2014, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the April 1, 2014, 
regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the April 1, 2014, 
closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the April 15, 2014, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add a Proposed Resolution Terminating/Appointing Plat 
Review Officers and Possible Action After Closed Session to the agenda. 
 

DRAFT 

050714 BCC Meeting

2



Chairman Miller requested to add under Boards and Commissions an appointment to serve as a 
representative on Appalachian State University’s Town and Gown Committee. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the 
April 15, 2014, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BOONE TOWN COUNCIL REQUEST FOR WATAUGA COUNTY TO CHANGE THE 
METHOD OF DISTRIBUTION OF SALES TAX 
Mayor Andy Ball, Town of Boone, read a resolution from the Town of Boone requesting 
consideration of changing the sales tax distribution method from ad valorem to per capita.  
Lengthy discussion was held by Board members and Mayor Ball. 
 
The Towns of Blowing Rock, Beech Mountain and Seven Devils provided resolutions requesting 
the continuation of the current ad valorem method of sales tax distribution.  The following spoke 
briefly encouraging the same:  Blowing Rock Town Manager Scott Fogleman, Beech Mountain 
Councilman Alan Holcombe, and Seven Devils Mayor Pro-Tem Brad Lambert. 
 
After continued discussion, Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved 
to change the method of sales tax distribution to per capita. 
 

VOTE: Aye-2(Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-3(Miller, Blust, Yates) 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION HONORING HOUND EARS CLUB’S 50TH ANNIVERSARY 
Mr. Jason Reagan, Director of Communications for Hound Ears Club, gave a presentation 
detailing the history of the Club and a proclamation for consideration honoring the 50th 
Anniversary of Hound Ears Club. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION ESTABLISHING GREENING MY PLATE WEEK 
Mr. Bill Moretz will request the Board to proclaim the week of April 27, 2014 as Greening My 
Plate Week.  The purpose of the proclamation is to bring awareness of the benefits of locally 
grown fruits and vegetables and recognize and celebrate the farmers who provide this produce. 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

3



Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR PAVING RECYCLING CENTER AND TRANSFER 
STATION PARKING AREAS 
Mr. J.V. Potter, Operations Service Director, presented the following bids for paving the 
Recycling Center parking lot and patching at the Transfer Station: 
 

Bidder Amount 
Moretz Paving $80,648.00
Boone Paving $105,700.00
Tri County Paving $98,672.60

 

Moretz Paving was the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $80,648.  Mr. Potter stated that 
adequate funds were budgeted to cover the expense. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Transfer Station floor was scheduled to be replaced 
and, therefore, paving near the Transfer Station may be delayed due to that project. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to award the bid for paving at 
the Recycling Center parking lot and patching at the Transfer Station to Moretz Paving in the 
amount of $80,648 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
 

Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
March 2014.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
 

Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for March 2014, as well as a report from 
the new motor vehicle billing system, North Carolina Vehicle Tax System (NCVTS), for Board 
approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for March 2014, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

050714 BCC Meeting

4



 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the North 
Carolina Vehicle Tax System Refunds and Releases Report for March 2014 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Proposed Resolution Terminating/Appointing Plat Review Officers 

 

Mr. Warren presented a resolution terminating Plat Review Officers that were no longer 
employed with the County and appointing Brandon Saunders and Nathan Bland as Review 
Officers in addition to Ms. Marilyn M. Osborne who already serves as a Review Officer. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

HIGH COUNTRY RURAL PLANNING ORGANIZATION (RPO) TRANSPORTATION 
PRIORITIES 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, will present the Transportation priorities for 
the High Country Rural Planning Organization.  The General Assembly adopted a new funding 
method for transportation projects last year which requires that projects from all modes of 
transportation be ranked together.  Mr. Furman compiled all modes into one list for easier 
viewing and ranking.  In addition, he contacted the four municipalities and AppalCART for 
input.  The Town of Boone was to submit one project directly to the RPO; the other 
municipalities do not have allotted projects, so their input comes through the County.  Mr. 
Furman stated that the Town of Boone was likely to choose an “in-town” project, such as the 
King Street/College Street improvements. Seven Devils favors the NC Highway 105 bridge/turn 
lane at Broadstone Road.  Beech Mountain’s top project is the Beech Mountain Parkway 
Walkway (shown as an Avery County project).  Blowing Rock favors the King/College Street 
improvements, US Highway 421/321/194 North to Vilas widening and US Highway 321/NC 
Highway 105 intersection improvements in that order.  AppalCART would like to purchase an 
additional bus if proposed student housing occurs.  Documentation is attached on the input 
received. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to select the following projects, 
in the stated order of priority: 
 

1.  US Highway 421 to the junction of US Highway 421/321 in Vilas 
2.  NC Highway 105 @ Broadstone Road (new bridge and left turn lane) 
3.  Bamboo Road/Wilson Ridge Road (widen the lanes and improve the intersections) 
4.  NC Highway 194 from King Street to Howard’s Creek Road 

 
VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

050714 BCC Meeting

5



MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Request to Waive Fee for Use of Human Services Center Parking Lot  
 

County Manager Geouque stated that, per Commissioner request, staff contacted Mr. Bill Mast 
to obtain more details regarding his use of the Human Services Center for a fund raising event.  
Mr. Mast indicated that the money raised by the event would be used for scholarships for rising 
high school seniors. 
 
No action was taken. 
 

B. Boards and Commissions 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that the Blowing Rock Town Council recommended the 
appointments of Doug Matheson and Ray Pickett to serve as representatives on the Watauga 
County Recreation Commission. 
 
Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to waive the second reading 
and appoint Doug Matheson and Ray Pickett to the Watauga County Recreation Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Chairman Miller stated that a request had been submitted for the County to appoint 
representatives to Appalachian State University’s Town and Gown Committee. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to appoint Commissioner 
Kennedy and County Manager, Deron Geouque, and/or his designee to represent Watauga 
County on the Town and Gown Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

 Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute will hold an Open House & Business 
After Hours on Thursday, April 17, 2014, from 5:00 -7:00 P.M. at the Watauga Campus 
located at 506 Community College Drive in Boone. 

 

 Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 8, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014; 
both beginning at 4:00 P.M. and will be held in the Commissioners’ Board Room. 

 

 Community Pride Week will be held May 12 – 17.  The week will conclude on May 17 
with Household Hazardous Waste Day at the County Landfill from 9:00 A.M. until 2:00 
P.M. and Operation Medicine Cabinet at the three local Food Lion locations as well as 
Foscoe Fire Department from 10:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M.  Please see the enclosed 
announcement for more details. 

050714 BCC Meeting

6



PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Matt Snyder commented on the sales tax distribution method by stating that he appreciated 
the distribution method being ad valorem. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 7:33 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land 
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to resume the open meeting at 
8:19 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to proceed, upon 
recommendation of the engineer, with the purchase of the Hwy 321 property contingent upon 
substantial progress of acquiring permits as monitored by the County Manager with the intent to 
construct an ambulance base at the site and to approve the allocation of $1,500 for a wetlands 
permit as required by the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
(DENR). 

 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
8:21 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

050714 BCC Meeting

7



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MAY 7, 2014, AGENDA 
 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION’S REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Ly Marze, Finance Director for Watauga County Schools, will request funds from the 
Education Lottery Fund.  The total amount requested is $35,500 and will be used to shingle a 
portion of the roof at Bethel School.  
 
Board action is required to approve and disburse the requested funding. 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

11



050714 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY REQUEST 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Jonathan Allen, Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, will present information to the 
Board about the Theatre and request County support for the project.  The Theatre is requesting a 
$250,000 grant from the County to be repaid over a five (5) year period.  The purpose of the 
grant is to assist in the renovation and restoration of the Appalachian Theatre.  In addition, Mr. 
John Cooper, Campaign Chairman, has invited the Board on a tour of the Theatre the evenings of 
May 14th and 15th.  Should these dates not work, Mr. Cooper will arrange a private tour at your 
convenience.  If three (3) or more members wish to attend one of the dates, staff will advertise 
that a majority of the Board may be present at one of the dates provided.   
  
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

13



 

 
 
 
                               May, 2014 
 
 

REQUEST FOR SUPPORT FROM WATAUGA COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

 
The Appalachian Theatre of High Country, Inc. respectfully submits this request for a 
grant in the amount of $250,000 (payable over a period of up to 5 years) to support the 
Campaign to Renovate and Restore the Appalachian Theatre. 

 
STATEMENT OF NEED  

 
If the art we create and support represents who we are as a culture, then the High Country 
needs a public arts space to showcase the artistic endeavors of local and regional 
performers, and to promote and support arts education in the area.  We have a former 
theatre used for movies and live entertainment currently sitting empty and unused in 
downtown Boone whose size is not replicated by any existing facility in the region.  Many 
of the performing arts organizations in the High Country lack an appropriate permanent 
venue in which to express their artistry. 
 
A renovated Appalachian Theatre in downtown Boone will provide a gathering place, a 
unique opportunity to bring music, dance, theatre and media arts to the heart of the High 
Country.  This venue will be a magnet for local residents and a draw for tourists.  Watauga 
County has grown significantly in the past decade, and the US Census and economic data 
indicate this trend will continue. Our challenge is to absorb that growth while maintaining 
the rural essence and soul of the region. The Appalachian Theatre is a vital component in 
preserving our heritage while shaping, influencing and sustaining its future.  
 
Through the preservation and use of this venue, we assert our values and express our 
identity. We are a community, proud of our Appalachian culture and music and committed 
to enhancing quality of life through the arts.  By defining, preserving, and promoting our 
uniqueness we hold fast to our heritage and help steer our growth while strengthening our 
economic vitality. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 
 
A group of leaders from Watauga County, led by John Cooper, President of Mast General 
Stores, is conducting a capital campaign to raise support for the purchase, renovation, and 
restoration of the 1930’s-era Appalachian Theatre on King Street in Downtown Boone.  
The Theatre has a rich, colorful history, but now stands gutted and boarded up in the 
middle of a rapidly-growing, vibrant area. 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

14



The Theatre, once it is restored to its original art deco brilliance, will be capable of hosting a variety of events 
including lectures, meetings, film series, concerts, medium size theatre and smaller dance productions.  With 
approximately 600 seats, the Theatre will be able to host almost any small- to mid-sized performing arts event.  
Space above the lobby will be used for business meetings, wedding receptions, class reunions, and other events.  
The auditorium will have approximately 350 orchestra and 250 balcony seats, and the meeting/reception space 
will accommodate up to 250 people.  The cost of purchasing the building, renovating and restoring it to its original 
state, and three years of underwriting the start-up/operational expenses, is expected to be in the range of $6-8 
million.   

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND PARTICIPATION 
 
The Appalachian Theatre programming intends to reflect the diversity and richness of the region and its interests, 
including music, dance, theater, film, and media arts, among others.  Recognizing that cultural education is a 
critical component in preparing young people for the future and sustaining the vitality of our senior populations, 
the theatre will welcome and encourage educational programming for all ages.  While regional groups will have 
prominence, national touring groups and commercial bookings should also find a place at the theatre.   
 
There is no other room of this size available to the public for rent in the local area, and we anticipate this to be one 
of the most widely used spaces within the new Theatre.  In the winter of 2012, the Board of the Appalachian 
Theatre conducted a community-wide survey or potential users and developed a listing that is included below.   
 

 Appalachian Cloggers 
 Appalachian Expressive Arts Collective 
 Appalachian Musical Theatre Ensemble  
 Appalachian Young People’s Theatre* 
 Art in the Park 
 ASU Dept. of Athletics* 
 ASU Dept. of Theatre and Dance* 
 ASU Hayes School of Music* 
 ASU Office of Arts and Cultural Programs* 
 ASU Visiting Writers Series 
 Beanstalk Little Theatre* 
 Blowing Rock Community Foundation 
 Blowing Rock Jazz Society  
 Blue Ridge Community Theatre* 
 Cadence Dance Studio at Harvest House 
 Caldwell Comm. College and Tech. Institute  
 Cannon Music Camp  
 Center for Appalachian Studies 
 Center for Judaic, Holocaust, and Peace Studies 
 Children’s Playhouse 
 Children’s Theatre Company (BRCT) 
 Community Music School at ASU  
 Churches/Faith Communities 
 Crea8tive Drama Workshop at ASU 
 Diversity Celebration 
 Elkland Art School 
 Grace Academy 
 Hammer Dulcimer Club 
 Harvest House Performing Arts Venue 
 High Country Dance Studio 
 High Country Playwrights Forum 
 High Country Water Media Society 
 High Country Writers 
 I Have a Dream Taskforce 
 In/Visible Theatre* 
 Jubilee Chorus 

 Junior Appalachian Musicians (JAM) 
 Lyric (an ASU poetry slam group)  
 Mountain Home Music* 
 Mountain Laurel Quilt Guild 
 Mountain Music Machine 
 Northwestern Studios, Inc. (Dance)* 
 Nth Degree Gallery and Studios 
 Office of International Studies 
 Presbyterian-Methodist Children’s Choir 
 Southern Appalachian Historical Association 
 Studio K Dance  
 Sugar Grove Music Fest 
 Todd New River Festival 
 Town of Boone/Cultural Resources Board  
 Tourism Development Authority 
 Turchin Center for the Visual Arts 
 Watauga Community Band* 
 Watauga County Arts Council* 
 Watauga High/Arts Council (Missoula Children's 

Theatre) 
 Watauga Education Foundation (“Shooting Stars”) 
 Watauga High "Open Mic Night" Club 
 Watauga High Poetry Club  
 Watauga Historical Society 
 Wedding, Meeting and Event Planners 

 
*Responded to one of the surveys as a potential 
Appalachian Theatre user 

 
 
 
 

 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

15



 

We will measure success for this facility partly by the sheer number of people we serve, along with our fiscal 
stewardship and financial viability.  But beyond the bottom line is our desire to get as many audience members as 
possible to see live performances and to feel a sense of ownership in their venue, an equally important measure of 
success for this endeavor.  Success also means an array of interesting and diverse program offerings and our 
establishment of a strong regional reputation and cultural identity.  As stated in our mission, the desire to be a 
cultural hub for the High Country and home for our regional arts organizations is paramount and the ultimate 
standard for any evaluation of our efforts.   
 
PARTNER ORGANIZATIONS 
 
The TOWN OF BOONE entered into an agreement with the DOWNTOWN BOONE DEVELOPMENT 
ASSOCIATION (DBDA) in which the DBDA would purchase the Theatre from the town within 3 years and 
renovate and restore the Theatre back to its original 1938 appearance. To assist in this effort, the DBDA formed 
the APPALACHIAN THEATRE RENOVATION TASK FORCE, made up of over 50 community citizens who were 
enthusiastically interested in seeing the Theatre renovated and restored to its earlier era. The Task Force was 
charged with developing construction plans for the Theatre, developing potential programming and operations 
for the Theatre, and developing a fundraising plan to purchase the building, pay for renovations and restoration, 
and provide supplemental operations funding for the first three years of operation. The new 501(c)(3), 
"Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, Inc." was formed in late 2012, and has now taken over the work of the 
Task Force. The Theatre group is also working with the BOONE DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL RESOURCES and 
numerous departments at APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY to explore opportunities for future 
collaborations. 
 
LEVERAGED FUNDS 
 
The Campaign to help fund the purchase, renovation, and restoration of the Appalachian Theatre is seeking 
support from local, regional, and statewide individuals, foundations, corporations and government entities who 
share in our belief that the Appalachian Theatre will contribute to the economic vitality of the High Country 
Region.  To date, the campaign has raised over $3.3 million in pledges and gifts.  A grant of $250,000 from 
Watauga County would help to move our campaign forward in a significant way, and would enhance our efforts to 
raise additional leadership level gifts to the campaign from the High Country area. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY 
 
This is a one-time request for support in the capital campaign to restore and renovate the Theatre.  Future 
operations will be funded by operating revenues including memberships, annual campaign drives, etc.    
 
MEASURING SUCCESS 
 
As much as possible given the constraints of available resources, this facility will be one of inclusion, rather than 
an exclusive space meant for only a few groups.  As stewards of the public trust, we will operate the facility with 
efficiency and fiscal responsibility.   
 
Whenever doing so is both feasible and affordable within the resource and personnel limitations of the 
Appalachian Theatre, the staff and board will strive to practice environmental responsibility by incorporating 
green building techniques for renovation and maintenance, and will seek to promote a carbon-reduced or carbon-
neutral environmental footprint in all aspects of the facility's operations. In addition, where practical and  

  

050714 BCC Meeting

16



 

affordable, all renovations, additions, and other modifications to the existing facility will be completed in an 
historically sensitive and conscious manner, complying where feasible with the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards for Rehabilitation in order to preserve and promote the theater's unique architectural and social 
history. The staff and board will also seek to preserve any surviving, intact, and reparable/maintainable original 
materials, characteristics, distinctive features, and other components associated with that history in compliance 
with the Secretary's Standards. 
 
Input from the theatre’s stakeholders, be they audience members, volunteers, facility users, artists, volunteers, 
donors or community supporters, will be valued and utilized as an essential element of the organization’s 
strategic planning process, and in building a strong sense of community investment in the theatre. 
 
In summary, we will measure success for this facility partly by the sheer number of people we serve, along with 
our fiscal stewardship and financial viability.  But beyond the bottom line is our desire to get as many audience 
members as possible to see live performances and to feel a sense of ownership in their venue, an equally 
important measure of success for this endeavor.  Success also means an array of interesting and diverse program 
offerings and our establishment of a strong regional reputation and cultural identity.  As stated in our mission, the 
desire to be a cultural hub for the High Country and home for our regional arts organizations is paramount and the 
ultimate standard for any evaluation of our efforts.   
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

17



050714 BCC Meeting

18



April 28, 2014 

Dear Commissioners: 

Campaign to Renovate and Restore 
the Appa lachian Theatre 

In order for you to better understand the economic 

importance of the Appalachian Theatre, I would like to invite 

you for a tour of the premises and an explanation of the 

exciting plans to restore this important landmark. To 

accommodate your schedules, we will have the Theatre open 

for you and any one you wish to bring for two evenings, May 

141
h and 15th from 5 until 6:00. Please email me to let me 

know which date you plan to tour the Theatre. 

If you are not available for either of these evenings, please call 

me or email me and I will arrange for a private tour at your 

convenience. 

Sincerely, 

John Cooper 

Campaign Chairman 

828 265-6511 

johnc@mastgeneralstore.com 

APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY, INC. 
P. 0. Box 11 DTS 
Boone, NC 28607 
828.262.4532 

www.savetheapptheatre.com 

050714 BCC Meeting

19



Campaign to Renovate and Restore 
The Appalachian Theatre 

John Cooper, Campaign Chair· 
Most General Store 

Jonathan Allen 
Allen Wealth Management 

Bill Barbour 
Charter Media 

Bettie Bond 
Relired. ASU 

Hanes Boren 
Footsloggers 

Sterling Carroll 
Carroll Lealhergoods 

Brian Crutchfield 
Re fired. Blue Ridge Electric 

Jim and Sheila Deal 
Attorney/Community Volunteer 

Bartlett Dougherty 
Realtor 

Alfred Glover 
Boone Ford Uncoln 

Mary Hall 
Bandanas 

Welborn and Patty Alexander 
BRAHM/Communify Lea ders 

Frank and Kay Borkowski 
Former Chancellor. ASU 

David Holt 
Enterta iner 

Michael and Michelle Leonard 
Conservation Attorney and Mayor of Bethania, NC 

Joe and Lynda Miller 
CheopJoes 

Keith Martin 
Appalachian State University 

Jerry Moretz 
Refired, Wa tauga Medical Center 

Peter Petschauer 
Retired, ASU 

Nancy Reigel 
Community Volunteer 

Max Smith 
Red Gremlin Design Studio 

Bobby Snead 
Refired, ASU 

Tommy Sofield 
U.S. Chemical Storage 

Kay Stacy 
Boone Drug 

Emily Stallings 
Community Volunteer 

Kenneth and Rosanne Peacock 
Chancellor, ASU 

Wade and Kathy Reece 
BB&T Insurance Services 

Bonnie and Jamie Schaefer 
Weslglow Resort and Spa 

Dave and Ginny Stevens 
Historic Preservationist/Community Leaders 

Kenneth and Gerry Wilcox 
Business Leaders 

AS OF 9/1/13 

050714 BCC Meeting

20



Campaign to Renovate and Restore 
The Appalachian Theatre 

APPALAC HIAN THE ATRE 
Campaign Chair 

OF THE HIGH COUNTRY John Cooper 
BOARD OF TRUSTEE S 

I 

Campaign Coordinator Campaign Cabinet 
Jonathan Allen* Keith Martin* 

Gail Hearn Bill Barbour Jerry Moretz* 
Bettie Bond* Peter Perschauer 
I lanes Boren"' Nancy Reigel 

Cultivation/ Special E vents 
1--

Sterljng Carroll Max Smid1 
Bettie Bond, Emily Stallings 13rian Crutchfield Bobby Snead* 

Jim and Shelia Deal* Tommy Sofield 
Bartlett Dougherty Kay Stacy* 
Alfred Glover Emily Stallings 

Marketing /PR/Materials 
1-- Mary Hall 

Max Smith *Exuutive Co!llmillce Mcmbcr.r 

l 
Leadership Gifts Major Gifts 
(Gifts ovcr $25,000) (Gifts $5,000-$24,999) 

Chair: John Cooper Co-Chairs: Jonathan Allen & Jim Deal 

Corporations Businesses 
f- Captain: Co-Captains: 

Kay Stacy - H anes Boren & 
t-

Mary Hall 

Individuals 
1- Captain: Individuals 

John Cooper Co-Captains. 
1- Bettie Bond & 

.._ 

Bartlett Dougherty 

Foundations 
I.- Captain: 

Jerry Moretz 

Campaign Counsel 
r. Whitney Jones 

Terri Dillon 

I 
Honoracy. Cabinet 

Welborn and Patty Alexander 
Frank and Kay Borkowski 

David Holt 
Michael and Michelle Leonard 

Joe and LynLia Miller 
Kenneth and Rosanne Peacock 

Wade and Kathy Reece 
Bom1ie and Jamie Schaefer 
Dave and Ginny Stevens 

Kenneth and Gerry Wilcox 

l 
Communit~ Gifts 
(Gifts less d1an $5,000) 
Chair: Bobby Snead 

CQtJlmuni~ Org!,!nizations 
Captain: 

Brian Crutchfield 

Direct Mail 
Captain: 

Nancy Reigel 

I I "' ')I J l .!Ill ; 

050714 BCC Meeting

21



Appa lachian Theatre of the High Country, Inc. 

Bettie Bond 
Jim Deal 

Alfred Glover 
Alex Hooker 

Eric Plaag 
Denise Ringler 

Karen Sabo 

Board of Trustees 2012-13 

John Cooper, Chair 
Keith Martin, Vice Chair 
Frank Mohler, Vice Chair 

Bob Neill, Treasurer 
Dan Shepherd 

Max Smith 
Bob Snead 
Kay Stacy 

Andy Stallings 
Dempsey Wilcox 

Greg Williams 

Positioning Statement for t he 
APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH COUNTRY 

(Approved by the Board of Trustees on October 24, 2012) 

THE ROLE AND VALUE OF THE ARTS 

When Lyndon Johnson signed into law creation of the National Endowment of the Arts in 1965, he declared, "Art is a 
nation's most precious heritage, for it is in our works of art that we reveal to ourselves, and to others, the inner vision 
which guides us as a nation." The kind of art we create and support represents who we are as a culture. The unique 
heritage and culture of southern Appalachia survives today through artistic expression handed down from generation 
to generation. 

STATEMENT OF NEED FOR THE VENUE 

If the art we create and support represents who we are as a culture, then the High Country needs a public arts space to 
showcase the artistic endeavors of local and reg ional performers. We have a former theatre used for movies and live 
enterta inment currently sitting empty and unused in downtown Boone whose size is not replicated by any existing 
facility in the region. Many of the performing arts organizations in the High Country lack an appropriate permanent 
venue in which to express their artistry. 

A renovated Appalachian Theatre in downtown Boone will provide a gathering place, a unique opportunity to bring 
music, dance, theatre and media arts to the heart of the High Country. This venue will be a magnet for local residents 
and a draw for tourists. Watauga County has grown significantly in the past decade, and the US Census and economic 
data indicate this trend will continue. Our challenge is to absorb that growth while maintaining the rural essence and 
soul of the region. The Appalachian Theatre is a vital component in preserving our heritage while shaping, influencing 
and sustaining its future. 

Through the preservation and use of this venue, we assert our values and express our identity. We are a commun ity, 
proud of our Appalachian culture and music and committed to enhancing quality of life through the arts. By defining, 
preserving, and promoting our uniqueness we hold fast to our heritage and help steer our growth while strengthening 
our economic vitality. 

050714 BCC Meeting

22



THE MISSION, SCOPE, AND VISION FOR T HE ORGANIZATION 

The mission of the Appalachian Theatre of the High Country (hereafter, Appalachian Theatre) is to provide a quality 
venue for a variety of artistic genres; to contribute to the region by promoting and strengthening the area's unique 
cultural identity and creative history; to enhance business in downtown Boone and the High Country; to provide a 
cultural hub for the area; and to find new life for a historic building while maintaining its financial sustainability and 
maximizing its economic impact. 

The Appa lachian Theatre strives to be a flexible venue celebrating homegrown Appalachian arts and artists, as well as 
traditional performing arts and ethnically diverse programs associated with the region. The Appalachian Theatre will 
welcome arts groups from Watauga County and the broader High Country region, both amateur and professional. The 
theatre will attempt to show fi lms unavailable loca lly, and be open to arts groups exploring work from classica l to 
experimental and non-traditional while accommodating a variety of education, outreach, and special events. 

HOW WE PLAN TO ACHIEVE THE MISSION 

We can achieve this mission in the following ways: 

• Through outreach to and inclusion of local, regional, and national artists in our programming; 
• Through the formation of strategic collaborations and partnerships; 
• Through the active engagement of the community in establishing, using, and sustaining the facility; and 
• Through the cultivation of relationships with groups or individuals who will use the space on a regular basis. 

We will endeavor to design the space to be flexible, accommodating as much as feasible the varying needs of potential 
users. We will staff the facility with experienced, versatile professionals who will nurture an atmosphere in which all 
members of the community are welcomed and encouraged to participate in the life of the Appalachian Theatre. We 
will appeal to those drawn to the theatre for nostalgic reasons as well as those with no prior relationship with the 
building. 

PROGRAM PHILOSOPHY OF THE ORGANIZATION 

The Appalachian Theatre programming intends to reflect the diversity and richness of the region and its interests, 
including music, dance, theater, film, and media arts, among others. Recognizing that cultural education is a critical 
component in preparing young people for the future and sustaining the vitality of our senior populations, the theatre 
will welcome and encourage educational programming for all ages. While regional groups will have prominence, 
national touring groups and commercial bookings should also find a place at the theatre. 

Renting the theatre for meetings, conferences and special events will enhance the revenue stream, promote economlc 
development, and connect the venue with the corporate sector and visitors, broadening their role as stakeholders in 
the success of the theatre. 

PRODUCTION VALUES NEEDED TO SUPPORT VARIOUS PROGRAMS 

The Appalachian Theatre, which was originally designed as a movie theatre with limited live entertainment capabilities, 
needs to be redesigned to allow for its use by a wide variety of prospective users. The Design and Construction 
Committee will lead an effort by the Board of Trustees to accomplish this task within the space li mitations of the venue 
using our available human and financial resources. Ideally, the public spaces should be arranged to include an audience 
mingling area, concessions, and modern restrooms. An on site office needs to be located for management to support 
activities of the theatre. 

050714 BCC Meeting

23



CHARACTERISTICS OF OUR STAFF AND BOARD LEADERSHIP 

The pa id staff of the renovated Appalachian Theatre will be small, but experienced and high ly skilled. They should 
oversee the day-to-day operation of the theatre, assist and supervise groups using the space, and coordinate the large 
corps of volunteers. Marketing will publicize the theatre locally, regionally, and when appropriate, nationally. Board 
members will have various areas of expertise: fiscal management, fundraising, strategic planning, marketing, public 
relations, non-profit leadership, education, and arts programming. Trustees will reflect the diversity of the area, with 
long-term residents and newer arrivals both represented. Until such time as a professional staff is identified and 
retained, the governing board will need to be a working body with its members taking an active role in operating the 
faci lity. 

Private support is critical to the success and long-term sustainability to this project. Major donors may play a role as 
part of the Appalachian Theatre Resource Council, and will have a voice in guiding its vision and the direction of the 
theater. 

CO MMITM ENT TO TRAINING, EDUCATION, AND OUTREACH 

Offering the facility on a rental basis to user groups for education and outreach purposes is a crucial way to get students 
and community members engaged in the Appalachian Theatre. Possible activities include curriculum-based classes, 
workshops, and other programs for student populations. A state-of-the-art Appalachian Theatre will be a learning 
laboratory to train future generations of performing and media artists. Beyond programs for student populations, the 
theatre will offer continuing education opportunities for all community members as an outreach program. Once the 
theatre is self-sustaining, a strategic goa l is to create a rental subsidy fund to assist non-profit arts groups with facility 
expenses. 

STATEMENT OF INTEGRITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

As much as possible given the constraints of available resources, this facil ity will be one of inclusion, rather than an 
exclusive space meant for only a few groups. As stewards of the public trust, we will operate the facility with efficiency 
and fiscal responsibility. 

Whenever doing so is both feasible and affordable within the resource and personnel limitations of the Appalachian 
Theatre, the staff and board will strive to practice environmental responsibility by incorporating green building 
techniques for renovation and maintenance, and wi ll seek to promote a carbon-reduced or carbon-neutral 
environmental footprint in all aspects of the fac ility's operations. In addition, where practical and affordable, all 
renovations, additions, and other modifications to the existing facility will be completed in an historically sensitive and 
conscious manner, complying where feasible with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation in order to 
preserve and promote the theater's unique architectural and social history. The staff and board will also seek to 
preserve any surviving, intact, and reparable/maintainable original materials, characteristics, distinctive features, and 
other components associated with that history in compliance with the Secretary's Standards. 

Input from the theatre's stakeholders, be they audience members, volunteers, facility users, artists, volunteers, donors 
or community supporters, will be valued and utilized as an essential element of the organization's strategic planning 
process, and in building a strong sense of community investment in the theatre. 

HOW WE MEASURE SUCCESS 

We measure success for this facil ity partly by the sheer number of people we serve, along with our fiscal stewardship 
and financial viability. But beyond the bottom line is our desire to get as many audience members as possible to see 
live performances and to feel a sense of ownership in their venue, an equally important measure of success for this 
endeavor. Success also means an array of interesting and diverse program offerings and our establishment of a strong 
regional reputation and cultural identity. As stated in our mission, the desire to be a cultural hub for the High Country 
and home for our regional arts organizations is paramount and the ultimate standard for any evaluation of our efforts. 

050714 BCC Meeting

24



Campaign to Renovate and Restore 
The Appalachian Theatre 

rfo't. cflo't.e Qn(o'C.matLon ... 

CAMPAIGN CHAIR: 
John E. Cooper, Jr. 
Mast General Store, Inc. 
200 Punkin Center 
Valle Crucis, NC 28691. 
(828) 963-651.1 office I (828) 265-651.1 Cell 
johnc@mastgeneralstore.com 

CAMPAIGN COORDINATOR: 
Gail Hearn 
P. 0. Box u DTS 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 963-4713 (Direct Line) 
gigi04@skybest.com 

CAMPAIGN COUNSEL: 

F. Whitney Jones 
Terri Dillon 
Whitney Jones, Inc. 
One Salem Tower, Penthouse 2 

119 Brookstown Avenue 
Winston-Salem, NC 27101. 
(336) 722-2371 
whitney@whitney:jonesinc.com 
terri@whitneyjonesinc.com 

CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE TO: 
Campaign for the Appalachian Theatre 

MAILING ADDRESS: 
Appalachian Theatre ofthe High Country 
P. 0. Box u DTS 
Boone, NC 28607 
www.savetheapptheatre.com 

050714 BCC Meeting

25



APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
Apnl 2nd, 2014 

King Street Facade Rendering CLEA RSCA PES 
"- C 1t I l f ( lU-I 4. T 

050714 BCC Meeting

26



1-
UJ 
UJ 

fE 
(/) 

a cr 
~ 
0 
:z: 

~----------------,AUG~------------~~ ---1 

I 
1 

' i 
i 
i 

40'-lr 

.. ~ 
~G r _ _!S!P..!:_-4--. ~J& -~ 

! 
I 

I 
i 

12'.()' 

un 
8'4)' 

X 
11'-4' 

9'-4' 

"' "' :::> 
0 :z:: 
~ 
"' ~ 

8'-l!" 

STAGING& 
ASSEMBLY 

STAGE LEFT WING 

I" '' z ! : 
2 l' 9 I ~ 
:z l'l· ; : l;!! 
X STAGE #.le i ! w 

l!l ~~I I .sf . ' • 
~ '. 

Ltl.ff ! !s-1-"' 

II ' [ cs:: ""''::! 
~ ST . . ':V 

396 SEATS 

~PPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
,April 2nd, 2014 

•9' ... • PORTlON OF Fl OOR SLOI'EO 1.12 

~! j ~I 
l§~ ' i ------t I-. UJ 

~s·~~ UJ 
0::: .- I' LOBBY ~ I i I-
(/) . ' : ! j (.') 

' t- z W""""' ~--~ ,--'; . 
~ 

Schematic Design Base Options Diagram 1 
~· First Level Plan 

A I C w. I 1 I ( t U . t A I t 
(LEARSCAPES 

050714 BCC Meeting

27



1-
UJ 
UJ 

IE 
U) 

a 
a::: 

~ 
0 
:z: ~l======~'>~-*W-¥-~-~·-mk-w-w-ttt~~~~[j~~~ 

~APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
fpril2nd, 2014 

Schematic Design Base Options Diagram 2 
$" Second Level Plan 

tiJ 
UJ 
a::: 
1-
C/) 

(.!) 
:z 
sz 

CLE-A-RSCA PES 
At CI111f(TU tt "'' 

050714 BCC Meeting

28



1-
UJ 
UJ 

fE 
(/) 

a 
cr 
~ 
0 
::r: 

j< ,\;x: ::>1 
... 

·' ~ 
i 

il 
' 

...... 

f ...... ~ 
·-----·····----------------··--= 

~APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
Fril2nd, 2014 

TENSION WIRE GRID 
SYSTEM ACCESS 
PlATFORM 

FOU.OW SPOTI--11-HJ!•il) 
HCSEATING 

i 

I 
FOllOWSPOT/ Il l ~~~ 

HCSlEAT~~G 

261 SEATS 
281 if Contrails omitted 

FOllOW SPOT lOCATION 

--LIGHTING RAIL ABOVE 

FOU.OW SPOT lOCATIOO 

Schematic Design Base Options Diagram 3 
-$• Balcony Level Plan 

1-w 
w 
0::: 
1-
C/) 

(!) 
:z 
::,::: 

CLE-A-RSC-A-PES 
A. C -.I l l C l U. f A. l 

050714 BCC Meeting

29



,_ 
UJ 
UJ 

~ 
(/) 

a 
cr 
~ 
0 :r 

-- I \ \ \_\_\_\ \\-\\-\--------~~-------=--------~-=~-::.-::- - =1 
..: ;; 

~ 
<:ONE WAY TRAFFIC! 

~ 
~ 

..: 
;; 

!&' ~ll~l~Li 
~~ u ~., sy PPORT/ 1 
f'--.{ @ ~ . . - . ... 

I ® ~ 
I ® ~ 
I G) ~ 

OOOR TO MEZZENINE STORAGE 
AW/E SHOWN DASHED 

SARV1S PROPERTIES 

~ APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
~pril2nd, 2014 

~
,, ,, 

<.,,, /--> 
' / '-, / 

TOWN OF BOONE 

CHRISTtAND PROPERTIES 

Schematic Design Base Options Diagram 4 
~K Howard Street Level Plan 

(LE-ARSCA PES 
4 t (~I' I C. ' u • t A t f 

050714 BCC Meeting

30



HOWARD 
STREET 

~ 

HORIZOIIIT A!. UGHTlNG RAIL AND 
VERTICAl PIPE RAil BCYONO 

·TYP AT HOUSE CATWAlK LOCATIONS 

TENSIQ.'f\\1RE G1liO SYST£"1 ACCI:SS PlATfORM I 

I'_ 1 

~ 

[ '7s;~~~-;'0::. -1 ·--.----. , ~~ LOBBY ' KING 
MEZZAMNE - ~ STREET 

~APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
Fpril 2nd, 2014 

Schematic Design Base Options Diagram 5 
North/South Section Looking West 

(LEA RSCA PES 
• •C~Itl(tu•t Al l 

050714 BCC Meeting

31



Section at Pit Lift Option 2 

~ 

~ 

Section at Depressed Pit Level Option 1 

-

APPALACHIAN THEATRE of the HIGH COUNTRY 
April 2nd, 2014 

. 

DEMOUNTABLESEATINGOVER-1----_ :; \ \\ U. ' 
EI.EVATEOPITMOUNTED?tATFORM I ~. 

OR PIT UFT FLOOR AT HOUSE 
ELEVATION 

ORCHESTRA BELOW STAGE THRUST 
SHOWN DASHED AT DEPRESSED PIT 

OPTIONONtY 
.PIT UFT OPTION AT STAGE ElEVATION 

EXTENDS STAGE TRUST 

ENCLOSED EQUIPMENT UFT 
-MECHANICAL ROOM LOCATION T.B.D. 
·VERTICAL PlATFORM UFT OPTION AT 

SIMILAR LOCATION NOT SHOWN 

$" First Floor Level Plan 

STAGETHRUSTABOVE i' _.! ,. .. ~ 
SHOWN DASHED 

PIT LIFT OPTION NECHANICAL 
ROOM LOCATION 

$" Howard Street Level Plan 

Schematic Design Pit Options Diagram 6 (LE-ARSCA PES 
Ali(Hif ((IU#t • All 

050714 BCC Meeting

32



TNTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 
P. 0. BOX 2508 
CINCINNATI, OH 45201 

Dale: MAR 0 5 2013 

APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH 
COUNTRY INC 

C/O JAMES M DEAL JR 
B 7 0 WEST KING S'rREE'r 
BOONE, NC 28607 

Dear Applicant: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREAS\JR':{ 

Employer Identification Number: 
46-1461331 

DLN: 
17053024355043 

contact Person: 
DEL TRIMBLE 

Contact Telephone Number: 
(877) 829-5500 

Accounting Period Ending: 
December 31 

Public Charity Status: 
170 (b) (1) (A) (vi) 

Form 990 Required: 
Yes 

Effective Date of Exemption: 
October 17, 2012 

Contdbution Deductibility: 
Yes 

Addendum Applies: 
NO 

ID# 31309 

Ne are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax 
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax 
under section SOl.(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are 
deductible under section 170 of the Code. You are also qualified to receive 
tax deductible bequests, devises , transfers or giEts under section 2055, 2106 
or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could hel!p resolve any questions 
regarding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records. 

Organizations exempt under section SOl(c) (3) of the Code are further classified 
as either public charities or private foundations. vl e determined that you are 
a publlc charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this 
letter. 

Please see enclosed Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for SOl(c) (3) Public 
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an 
exempt o~ganization. 

Letter 947 (DO/CG) 

050714 BCC Meeting

33



APPALACHIAN THEATRE OF THE HIGH 

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC 

- 2-

Sincerely, 

f./~~~ 
Hol ly 0. Pa z 
Dir ector, Exempt Organizations 
Rulings and Agreements 

Letter 947 (DO/CG) 

050714 BCC Meeting

34



050714 BCC Meeting

35



An unidentified man on the porch of the Daniel Boone Hotel (demolished in 1983) 
watches the devastating fire at Appalarnian Theatre on Jan. 21, 1950, while maping 
movie patrons gathers on the sidewalk. Photo courtesy of Watauga Democrat. 

Watuaga County's First 
And Only Art Deco Building: 
A History of the Appalachian Theatre 
by Craig Fischer, Frank Mohler, and Eric Plaag 

W. R. Winkler may have built the 
bullding we know today as the Appala
chian 'l11eatre in 1938, but the origins of 
that theater name in Boone date back to 
1919. 'lbat year, Winkler bought S300 
worth of projection equipment and ar
ranged with Watauga County to begin 
showing silent films in the courthouse 
basement. 

In 1923, Winkler sold half interest in 
his theater operation to Arthur E. Ham
by, and by the following year the Appa
lachian was known as the Dixie l11eatcr, 
with showings on Mondays, Thursdays, 
and Saturdays. ·n1c next year, 1925, 
Winkler and Hamby built the Pastime 
Theatre on West King Street, directly 
opposite the Coffey 1 louse in what is 
now the Professional Building. It had a 
seating capacity of just over 400, and the 
presence of a modest stage allowed for 
traveling western shows and some musi
cal acts to perform. 

By 1937, Hamby and Winkler ex
panded their enterprise by purchasing a 
house lot on the south side ofWest King 

24 - A"r•m•lDBCAROUNA MOUNTAIN UFE 

Street and erected Boone's second ver
sion of the Appalachian l11eatre, which 
they in turn leased in September 1938 
(along with the Pastime) to A. F. Sams 
and A. F. Sams,Jr., of StatesviUe. Hamby 
and Winkler provided most of the fi.rr
nishings and equipment, most notably 
two brand new Kaplan projectors; a new 
Western Electric sound system; seating 
for 999 patrons; stage scenery, drops, and 
curtains; a marquee, complete with neon 
letters; and chairs for the office. The les
sees, meanwhile, installed the theater's 
"new, first class carpets, draperies, [and] 
mezzanine and restroom furnittue." 

The Appalachian's magnificent ex
terior was the first and only known Art 
Deco building in Watauga County. lt 
featured decorative, structttral glass tiles 
that were lime green, white, and black, 
arranged in a geometric pattern leading 
to a prominent, parapeted ziggurat mo
tif, as well as a projecting neon marquee 
with red, yellow, and white lights. W hen 
it opened on November 14,1938, admis
sion was tiered, at ten or twenty cents for 

the matinee and ten or twenty-five cents 
for the evening showing. 

Like the old Pastime, the Appala
chian offered occasional stage perfor
mances by traveling acts, beauty contests, 
stage plays, minstrel shows, and other 
community events. By 1950, the Sams 
family was operating the theater un
der the name Appalachian Amusement 
Company. Seating throughout the 1950s 
and into the early 1960s was segregated, 
with black patrons relegated to the bal
cony, and the two small bathrooms on 
the balcony level were for white patrons 
only. With ilie decline of the studio sys
tem in the 1950s, independent cinema 
fare became more widely available, and 
its affordability was attractive. As a re
sult, Boone saw its fair share of foreign, 
monster, and exploitation fi.lms at the 
Appalachian during the 1950s, 1960s, 
and 1970s, no doubt testing the bound
aries of Boone's comparatively conserva
tive and religious social standards. 

Recently discovered photos reveal 
that the auditorium interior was quite 

050714 BCC Meeting

36



I -

1 
- I . 

~~-•:.: r::::--~, 
This post-1950 image of the lobby, concessions area, and balcony stairway of the Appalachian Theatre displays the attractive Art Deco and Art Moderne Influences lor which 
the Appalachian was famous. For its current rehabilitation, efforts are underway to reproduce many of the An Modeme details that characterized its interior following the 1950 
renovation. Photo courtesy of the NC Department of Cultural Resources 

different prior to a devastating popcorn 
fire on January 21, 1950. That after
noon, the teen operator of the open
flame popper at the rear of the theater 
went up front to drop off his first batch 
of boxed popcorn, then lingered to chat 
with the concessions stand girl. During 
his r.bsence, the sti ll active popper burst 
into flames. As the theater manager 
stood on stage and asked the audience 
to leave calmly, flames burst out through 
the air conditioning ducts, prompting 
something resembling a stampede. As 
the crowd reached the front doors of 
the theater, a large concussion-what 
one witness called "a hot wave"-swept 
through the theater. While no one was 
killed and what few injuries there were 
proved miJ10r, the damage to the audito
rium interior was catastrophic. 

Shortly after the fire, Winkler began 
renovations to the decor. To cope with 
the damages to the upper wails and a 
collapsed roof, he installed a barrel roof 
to replace the tiered roof of the origi
nal. New Art Deco sconces, which still 

survive, replaced the old fixtures. Win
kler also expanded the stage, giving it a 
curved front forward of its original flat 
edge. Several years later, an itin~rant 

painter came through to complete air
brushed paintings of cloud scenes in the 
new faux archways on the walls. 

By 1976, Winkler and his wife Ef
fie, who by now owned the building 
outright, found a new lessee in Essan
tee ~01catres, Inc., of Charlotte. This re· 
lationship continued until 1981, when 
Essantee bought the theater outright 
from the Winklers. Shortly thereafter, 
Essantec enclosed the balcony, converted 
the theater to two screens, renovated the 
lobby, and changed the name to the Ap
palachian Twin. Unable to compete with 
tbe new multiplex in Doone, though, the 
theater soon became a late-run dollar 
cinema. Carmike Cinemas then obtained 
the building as part of its 1986 purchase 
of Essantee, ultimately closing the twin 
cinema on November 29, 2007. 

Following its sale to a developer, who 
stripped the building of many of its re-

maining architectural finishes on both 
the exterior and interior, the Town of 
Boone purchased the building in 2011 
as part of that developer's bankruptcy 
proceedings. With the assistance of the 
Downtown Boone Development Asso
ciation, the Appalachian 1l1eatre of the 
High Country-a non-profit organiza
tion committed to recreating the theater's 
former glory, preserving its history, and 
transforming the building into one of the 
High Country's premier arts and culture 
venues- has since purchased the prop
erty. Restoration of the theater's original 
exterior appearance and renovation of its 
interior to a modern performance venue 
with elements of its original Art Deco 
decor is presently underway. 

C.raig Fischer Is a faculty member in the A5U English 
Department, Frank Mohler is a Professor Emert us 
of Theatre at ASU, and Eric Plaag is a historian and 
preservationist. 

CAROLINA MOUNTAIN LIFEAar• .. •<l11l-25 

050714 BCC Meeting

37



75th Anniversary 
of Appalachian 
Theatre Marks a 
Rebirth for 
Venerable 
Landmark 
by Keith Martin 

November 14. 1938. Excited resi
dents of the High Country gathered on 
a fall Monday to celebrate the gala open
ing ofTI1e Appalachian 1l1eatre in Boone. 
1l1c Watauga Democrat reported on the 
opening of "Northwest North Carolina's 
finest playhouse... The commodious 
structure is located in the center of the 
town's business district ... The construc
tion is of brick and sted, the front being 
finished in black plate gla,~, a striping of 
.:ream and green being used.1l1c marquee 
with "chasing'' lights is linishcd in baked 
pon:dain to compare with the front of 
the building and a distinctively beautiful 
appearance results." 

The article went on to herald "spring
edge upholstered seats," a "stage of ample 
proportions, and modernly lighted," and 
an "operator's booth of the most modern 
design, fully fi1·cproof and houses the lat
est Western Electric sound system which 
is used by the majority of the metropoli
tan showhouses.'' For audience comfort, 
"A huge combination air conditioning 
and steam plant supplies the heat for the 
structure and the blower system will pro
vide fresh cool air during the hottest of 
the summer." 

An original program of the gala open
ing night, recently donated to the theatre 
by area resident Pam Fisher from her 
motl1er's scrapbook, describes a five-act 
presentation that took place at 3:45 in 
the afternoon. It included greetings and 
a dedication followed by Walt Disney's 

26- Aoi•.,•20U CAROLINA MOUNTAIN UFE 

( 

,.:._ ;:;:...
,, - ""' 

The interior of Boone's Appalachian Theatre following the 1950 renovations included faux, decorative arches along 
its outer walls. The view here Is I rom the theater's balcony. Photo courtesy of C. J. Hayes. 

"Special Technicolor Presentation" of 
Mickey and Minnie Mouse in "Brave 
Little Tailor." A newsreel of current 
events preceded a short film on unusual 
occupations entitled, "How Charlie Mc
Carthys are Made" and, finally, the fea
tured film: Bobby Breen in "Breaking the 
Ice," with the world's youngest ice skater, 
Irene Dare. The entire program was re
peated twice that same evening at 7 and 
9pm. 

November 14, 2013. Organiz
ers of the "Save the Appalachian 1l1catre" 
task force- under the leadership of john 
Cooper of Mast General Store-have in
corporated a new non-profit, tax-exempt 
entity known as the Appalachian 1l1eatre 
of the I ligh Country (ATHC). Their 
mission is to provide a quality venue for 
a variety of artistic genres; to contribute 
to the region by promoting and strength
ening the area's unique cultural identity 
and creative history; to enhance business 
in downtown Boone and the High Coun
try; to provide a cultural hub for the area; 
and to find new life for a historic building 
while maintaining irs financial sustain
ability and maximizing its economic im
pact. 

1l1e Town of Boone acquired the 
facility in November 2011 after sub
mitting a bid for the property to a local 
bank during foreclosure proceedings. The 
Downtown Boone Development As
sociation (DBDA) served as fiscal agent 

for the project willie providing invaluable 
monetary and administrative supporl in 
nurturing the creation of ATHC. "1l1is 
unique private-public partnership is a 
model for projects of a similar nature, 
and the Downtown Boone Development 
Association is proud to contribute to 
the success of the Appalachian 1l1catrc," 
said Dempsey Wilcox, President of the 
DBDA Board of Directors. 

Cooper, now chair of d1e board of 
trustees, was joined on j uly 16'h by officers 
of the Appalachian 'l11catre to present a 
check to the Mayor for the remaining 
balance on the purchase loan, thereby re
imbursing the town "in full and with in
terest." According to Cooper, "1l1e Town 
of Boone made a visionary leap of faith 
by purchasing the venerable Appalachian 
Theatre, trusting that this prudent finan
cial investment would pay cultural divi
dends for current and future generations 
ofits citizens." 

Boone Mayor Loretta Clawson ac
cepted the payment of behalf of the Town 
of Boone and stated that, "1l1e caliber of 
people involved with this project guaran
tees its continued success." The Mayor ex
pressed her appreciation to the many lo
cal residents who have volunteered on the 
Save the Appalachian 1l1eatre task force 
and on numerous supporting committees. 
Cooper noted me mayor and town coun
cil's active participation behind the scenes 
since the inception of the project, whi le 
remarking that, "1l1eir leadership has 

050714 BCC Meeting

38



An unidentified man on the por(h of the Daniel Boone Hotel (demolished in 1983) 
watches the devastating fire at Appalachian Theatre on Jan. 21, 1950, while escaping 
movie patrons gathers on the sidewalk. Photo courtesy ol Watauga Democrat. 

Watuaga County's First 
And Only Art Deco Building: 
A History of the Appalachian Theatre 
by Craig Fischer, Frank Mohler, and Eric Plaag 

W. R. Winkler may have built the 
building we know today as the Appala
chian Theatre in 1938, but the origins of 
that theater name in Boone date back to 

1919. That year, Winkler bought $300 
worth of projection equipment and ar
ranged with Watauga County to begin 
showing silent films in the courthotrse 
basement. 

ln1923, Winkler sold half interest in 
his theater operation to Arthur E. Ham
by, and by the following year the Appa
lachian was known as the Dixie 'Theater, 
with showings on Mondays, rfl1ursdays, 
and Saturdays. 1l1e next year, 1925, 
Winkler and Hamby built the Pastime 
'Theatre on West J(jng Street, directly 
opposite the Coffey House in what is 
now the Professional Building. It had a 
seating capacity of just over 400, and the 
presence of a modest stage allowed for 
traveling western shows and some musi
cal acts to perform. 

By 1937, Hamby and Winkler ex
panded their enterprise by purchasing a 
house lot on the south side ofWest King 

24 - AuromnlOIJ CAROLINA MOUNTAIN LIFE 

Street and erected Boone's second ver
sion of the Appalachian 1beatre, which 
they in turn leased in September 1938 
(along with the Pastime) to A. F. Sams 
and A. F. Sams,Jr., of Statesville. Hamby 
and Winkler provided most of the fur
njshjngs and equipment, most notably 
two brand new Kaplan projectors; a new 
Western Electric sound system; seating 
for 999 patrons; stage scenery, drops, and 
curtains; a marquee, complete with neon 
letters; and chairs for the office. 1l1e les
sees, meanwhile, installed the theater's 
"new, first class carpets, draperies, [and] 
mezzanine and restroom furniture." 

1l1e Appalachian's magnificent ex
terior was the first and only known Art 
Deco building in Watauga County. It 
featured . decorative, structural glass tiles 
that were lime green, white, and black, 
arranged in a geometric pattern leading 
to a prominent, parapeted ziggurat mo
tif, as well as a projecting neon marquee 
with red, yellow, and white lights. When 
it opened on November 14,1938, admis
sion was tiered, at ten or twenty cents for 

the matinee and ten or twenty-five cents 
for the evening showing. 

Like the old Pastime, the Appala
chian offered occasional srage perfor
mances by traveling acts, beauty contests, 
stage plays, minstrel shows, and other 
community events. By 1950, the Sams 
family was operating the theater un
der the name Appalachian Amusement 
Company. Seating throughout the 1950s 
and into tlle early 1960s was segregated, 
with black patrons relegated to the bal
cony, and the two small bathrooms on 
the balcony level were for white patrons 
only. With the decline of the studio sys
tem in the 1950s, independent cinema 
rare became more widely available, and 
its alfordability was attractive. As a re
sult, Boone saw its fa ir sh:u·e of foreign, 
monster, and exploitation films at the 
Appalachian during the 1950s, 1960s, 
and 1970s, no doubt testing the bound
aries of Boone's comparatively conserva
tive and religious social standards. 

Recently discovered photos reveal 
that the auditorium interior was quite 

050714 BCC Meeting

39



the 
online ap 

YOUR STUDENT NEWSPAPER SINCE 1934 1 ONLINE SINCE 1996 

Historic Appalachian Theatre will open 
again with aid from area organizations 

Story: LOVEY COOPER, A&E Reporter 
January 17, 2013 

After closing its doors just over half a decade ago, a historic piece of 

downtown Boone will make itself ready and available to the public 
once again. 

Organizations are working to restore Appalachian Theatre "as much 
as possible to its 1938 appearance" fo llowing its purchase by the 
Appalachian Theatre of the High Country from the Town of Boone, 

said Frank Mohler, chair of the design and construction committee. 

The theatre was closed in 2007, and bought by the Town of Boone 
until another company could place an offer. 

The ATHC organization recently purchased the theatre in hopes of 

providing a home for several performing art organizations in the 
area, as well as hosting film festiva ls and eventually attracting 
regional and national talent. 

"The motivation is about saving a historic landmark as well as 
fulfilling the need for a performance art venue for the High 

Country," said John Cooper, the chair of the board of trustees of the 

Patrons line up for a performance of Maggie and Jiggs In Society. Plana are 
to restore the theater as close as possible to its original1938 appearance. 

ATHC. "There are many groups- including the Blue Ridge Community Theatre and Joe Shannon's Mountain Home Music- that have 
never had a home. " Cooper contacted other members of the North Carolina Arts Council and assembled a group to raise funds for the 
renovation. 

"I hadn't even begun work at App State when he asked me to assist on a little project with which he was involved, a group then known 

as the 'Save The Appalachian Theatre Task Force,"' said Keith Martin, vice chair of the board of trustees of the ATHC. "Our first meeting, 

I sat across from Doc Watson, who gave his blessing to the project and inspire al l of us in attendance to move forward." 

This is Martin's sixth such endeavor in restoring theatrical spaces. 

He said the support of the Town of Boone and the Downtown Development Association has been reaffirming. 

"Quite simply, this would not have happened without the vision and leadership of those two entities," Martin said. 

The theatre was originally opened in 1938 and presented stage shows including early theatri cal genre vaudeville, big bands, 

appearances by western movie actors and minstrel shows by local businessmen. As competi tion emerged in the 1980s, the theatre was 
converted to a cinema. 

"Personally, I can't wait to attend the first performance," Martin said. 

The final opening sti ll remains unknown due to fundraising, Cooper said. 

"We hope to be able to launch the public phase of the campaign t his summer," Cooper said. 

050714 BCC Meeting

40



I . 
PICTURE TO BEGIN IN ••• 

• 

1n e 
• 

.......... _ .............. aac 1an 

~ea re 

050714 BCC Meeting

41



Above are historic images of the theatre. The building caught on fire in the '50s because a flame from the popcorn machine 

spread throughout the building. By the '70s, the neon marquee was removed due to safety concerns. The far-right image 

depicts the foreclosed, gutted theatre in 201 1. 

Photos courtesy of the Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, Ken Ketchie and Jesse Wood 

S
ince mo,·ing ro Boone more than 
40 years ago. Berrie Bond has 
worked on various projecrs, serving 
on many committees in the town. 

Bur none of rhose hold a candle ro the ef
fort to preserve rhe 7 5-year-old theatre in 
the heart of dowmown Boone. In one sen
tence, Bettie Bond, an execurive committee 
member of the Appalachian Theatre of the 
High Country, summed up rhe successful 
ingredients: "Never in my life have I been 
on a project thar had all the elements: the 
passion, the creativity, the excitement, the 
leadership, the money- and all in rhe same 
room at the same rime." 

The project's completion is still a 
ways away, yet the nonprofit has secured 
the deed to rhe property by repaying the 

$624,500 loan from the Town of Boone. 
\Xihi le the capital campaign is still in the 
silent phase, more than half of the funds 
to cover the multi-million dollar restora
tion and ensuing operation costs were 
raised in about 16 months. Initially, some 
criticized the town for participating in this 
costly venrure and going om on a limb to 

purchase the vacant, padlocked building 
in foreclosure. Yet, the rown recouped its 
funds earlier than expected, and the incor
porated nonprofit overseeing the theatre 
remains debt free. So far, the opening date 
is uncertain, bur one thing's for sure: it 
will happen. "You can pur money on that 
horse." Bond assured. 

Two decades before the Appalachian 
Theatre became a mainstay motion-picture 

Duembu20i3 HIGH COUNTRY MAGAZINE 59 

050714 BCC Meeting

42



Appalachian Theatre, circa 1977 

attraction on King Street, a prior generation of moviegoers sat on 
benches in the basement of the Watauga County Courthouse a 
few blocks away to watch silent films. This was the brainchild of 
W.R. Winkler, who in 1919 ~rchased $300 worth of projector 
equipment for the shows. "On a good night" - as one historical 
account authored by Craig Fischer, Frank Mohler and Eric Plaag 
goes - Winkler could count on 40 to 50 people to attend the 
Saturday night screenings, and eventually, as the popularity grew, 
Wednesday night screenings, too. just as sound was revolution
izing cinemas across the globe, Winkler began expanding his film 
enterprise in Boone. In 1923, Winkler partnered with Arthur E. 

gram of the theatre's premiere in the late 30s. 
When the theatre opened on Nov. 14, 1938, it cost between 

10 to 30 cents to enter the movies, and children's tickets were 
always 10 cents. Several film segments were shown that first day, 
including a Walt Disney Production called "Brave Little Tailor;" 
a brief documentary titled "Unusual Occupations" that portrayed 
how the Charlie McCarrhy ventriloquist doll was made; and the 
feature screening, "Breaking the Ice," starring Bobby Breen and 
Irene Dare. Also on the premiere's bill was a newsreel, which was 
common at the movies back in the day. 

The newsreel, which years later would provide broadcasts of 
World War II, and ticket prices weren't rhe only thing different 
at the movies back then. "To bring to Boone, at all rimes, good, 
dean, wholesome entertainment" is what rhe opening day program 
pledged. It also noted that the new "beautiful and luxurious" the
atre represented "our faith in the future of Boone." The Appala
chian, it claimed, was dedicated to making everyone's life cheerful. 
"Still within all of us are life and laughter, travel and adventure, 
beauty and science - all made possible by the silver screen," the 
program read. "Romance, excitement, mystery, mirth- the spice of 
life. They rake us out of the rut of hum-drum existence." 

'One of the Finest Things' / 
That's how C.J. Hayes described the theatre, and he of all 

people wou ld know. He used to frequent the joint as a youngster, 
and subsequently worked there for 55 years- from floor mop
per and popcorn popper to manager. In one way or another, C.J. 
Hayes experienced probably every phase of the old Appalachian 
Theatre, which is proving to be quite resilient because an engulf
ing fire and foreclosure have yet to vanquish rhe theatre. 

Hamby, selling half his stake in the basemenr 
operation before it became the Dixie The
ater in 1924. The following year, Hamby 
and Winkler built the Pastime Theatre along 
West King Street in what is now the Profes
sional Building. The Pastime sat 400-plus 
patrons and featured motion pictures, trav
eling western shows .. and novelty acts and 
performances from musicians. 

"Romance, excitement, mystery, mirth -

the spice of life. They take us out of the rut of 

Then in 1937, Hamby and Winkler 
bought a house lot across from the Daniel 
Boone Hotel on the sourh side of King Street 
for SlO and "other valuable considerations" 
from the Hahn family, according to the ac
count by Fischer, Mohler and Plaag. This lot 
would become the Appalachian Theatre, and 
two months before it hosted irs gala open
ing in 1938, Hamby and Winkler leased the 
theatre, along with the Pastime, to a father
and-son tandem from Statesville. The Ap
palachian Theatre featured a neon marquee 
that nearly protruded above King Street ~111d 
is possibly the first and only Art Deco build
ing in Watauga County. Its original front fa
~ade was brick, covered almost entirely with 
decorative, black-baked porcelain tiles ar
ranged geometrically, leading to a prominent 
motif above the projecting marquee, which 
was rrimmed with aluminum. Also, the mez
zanine featured a "ladies powder room" and 
"men's smoking room," according to a pro-

60 HIGH COUNTRY MAGAZINE DramlttrlOIJ 

hum-drum existence." 

-Premiere 1938 program on movies in general 

I 

I 
I ill 

C()~UNO ATTRACTIONS 
11-..,.. ~ w ,._, &ill~~r c.-1 IH• t• t6, 

APPALACHIAN THEATRE 

"lOortt.O &». k.UOVt .... 
1...-A/ih·~ .... ,~ 

'A'.-h.-..Q • I\t,_.•, 
"'Tnt GUAT WAU'J' .... 

1-bM • ft~a.N ~tift 

#I'Ac-AYlUC now L01l" .... 
~ O"''Ht• • nwo.-. a...t 

........ 
""""-'-~ ro. nrc klioNIIt\ -........ . ,.~..-

... u.,.....-. 
~J · T_.,~ 

""1'MC ('IT~OU· .... 
....... o..- .. ......,.-~._.... 

w;:;;;:i., 
"'Mlt )(A C. ::l:' Nl .,1011" 

• .,.ot, ....... j'i . ,,~ , .. , , 

~11-n~.....-r .. 
PJniJ..''O J4At));tt.l .... 

tA• A!fft • N~ O ...... M 

,,...., 
•A M"-"' 'fV •.odlOV .... --

PASTIME TIIEATRE 

050714 BCC Meeting

43



·-- -r 
~ 

The projecting marquee (top) was neon and the original, exquisite front fa~ade featured decorative, black-baked 

porcelain tiles arranged geometrically, leading to a prominent motif above the marquee. (see opposite page) 

On Jan. 21, 1950, a popcorn popper erupted into fla mes and 
quickly spread rhroughour the building, ruining the theatre's lavish 
interior. As Fischer, Mohler and Plaag'~ hisrorical account reJds, 
"That afternoon, the teen operator of the open-flame popper ar rhe 
rear of the theatre went to the front of the theatre to drop off his 
first batch of boxed popcorn, then lingered ro char with the conces· 
sions stand girl. During his absence, rhe srill active popper bursr 
inro flames. The result was a fire that quickly spread, then entered 
the ventilation system. As the thearre manager stood on srage and 
asked the audience to leave calmlr, flames burst out through the air 
conditioning ducts, prompting something resembling a stampede. 
As the crowd reached the from doors of the theatre, a large con
cussion -what one witness called 'a hot wave'- swept through the 
thc:nre." Ko major injuries occurred during the blaze. 

Luckily for Hayes, he wasn't manning the popcorn popper 
during that unforrunate incident. Actually. Hayes didn't begin 
\\'Orking at the theatre until after rhe fire. Once the theatre was 
refurbished by rhe Atlanta-based Harris F. Ragsdale and opened 
for business, Hayes starred his entry-position at the Appalachian. 
Back then. Hayes said people would watch movies for the same 
reason they do now, to escape and for enjoyment, bur the experi
ence? " It was altogether different," Hayes said. "You'd have mov· 

ies on for a couple of days. You wouldn't have them on for fou r 
or five days like you do now. It was .111 experience. You'd sec the 
news of the day ... and a cartoon to go with rhe mo,·ies. lr's nor 
like it is now." 

" 'ews of rhe dar would come on first .. . It helped people 
learn about the day. [learn abour] wh,u was going on during the 
Wilr :1nd e\·erywhere," Hayes continued. "All the movies back 
then anybody could go see them. It was jusr good familr sruif 
b.lck then. It was interesting to say the least. You could go and 
rake your kids. It was pretty near. lr was a big pan of rhe com· 
munity back then. You could go to see bnll gnmes, and other rhan 
rhar, you had your movies to go to wirh family." 

Stripping Away History 
By rhe 1970s. the theatre's exterior appearance also dramari· 

cally differed from those early days ar rhe rail end of rhe Great 
Depression. Due ro safety concerns, rhe O\'erhanging marquee and 
porcelJin riles on rhe ~J~ade were covered with plywood she:tth
ing. And in the earl~' ·sos, a new owner dramatically altered the 
hisroric theatre operarion by enclosing the balcony to simulrane
ouslr show rwo lare-run films. From the '80s to date, ownership 
of rhe Appalachian changed hands five rimes. Winkler and his 

Drccml,er2QI3 H I GH COU '<TRY MAGA Z I :-.JE 61 

050714 BCC Meeting

44



, 

Daily 
Lunch 

Specials 
Lunch Hours: 

Mon-Fri 
11:00-3:00 

Sot-Sun 
11:30-3:00 

beginning Jon. 4 -
closed Soturdoy Lunch 

Also Open for Dinner Every Day: 
Mon-Sun 5:00-1 0:00 

,. Serving beer and ~ine * 

173 Howard Street 
in Downtown Boone 

828~268-0434 
Fax: 828-268-0439 
chadathai-nc.com 

Quality Care 
& Property Services 
FOR YOUR HOME & fiUSI~ESS 

SEASONAL HOME 
OPENINGS & CLOSINGS 
HOME MAINTENANC E & CLEANIN G 

DISASTER RESTORATION 
SMOKE & WATER DAM AGE 

24-HOUR EMERGENCY SERVICE 
AIR DUCT C LEAN IN G 

COMMERCIAl • RESIDENTIAl • RESORT 
CERTIFIED • LICENSED • INSURED 

2322 Bairds Creek Road 

I Vilas. North Carolina 28692 
828-297-2109 • 1-800-922-2109 

IKW*W!Et¥'1! ·"1'1 

,..., tl) .,.,. 
Oode<ol 

The Town of Boone 
Six-hundred twenty-four thousand and five-hundred o-. 

t- .c7~ -c-.o.w 

~ 

Keith Martin, Mayor Loretta Clawson, John Cooper, Karen Sabo, Jim Deal and 

Pilar Fotta hold a ceremonial check that represents the theatre nonprofit paying 

back the town for purchasing the theatre in a foreclosure auction. 

wife Effie sold rhe thearre ro Charlorrc· 
based Essamee Thearres Inc. for $10 and 
''orher good, valuable and sufficient con
siderations" in 1981. Afrer rhe balcony en
closure, Essamee ren.tmed rhe rhearre rhe 
Appalachian Twin, and five years larer, rhe 
Carmike Cinemas acquired rhe downtown 
Boone rhearre after buying out Essanree. 
Bur it wasn't unril decndes larer rhat rhc 
rhearre mer irs saddest fare. 

Afrer nearly 70 years of operation, Car· 
mike Cinemas decided ro clo~e shop on 
Nov. 29, 2007. and sold rhe property ro 
Cecil DeBoone, LLC, a limired liabilir>' cor
poration conrrolled by Frank Mongelluzzi. 
a developer with :unbirious plans ro turn 
rhe rheatre imo a restaurant and bar featur· 
ing li\·e music. Before Region's Bank fore· 
closed on rhe propert)' becau~e the Mon· 
gelluzzi's were in debt to the rune of tens 
of millions of dollars, the building was gur· 
red. Nearly any remaining 1938 and 1950 
decorative elements were stripped from rhe 
building. and the original tile enrryway was 
destroyed wirh layers of concrere. In addi
tion, the entire building was raken down ro 
irs bare brick. When the foreclosure pro
cess ended, rhe rhearre remained vacanr, 
boarded up and padlocked co those passing 
by - as ir srill is ... for now. 

While a foreclosure is a negative pro· 
cess for rhose associated with a proper£}', ir 
might have been rhe best rhing that could 
have happened in order ro preserve the 
rhearre's original 1938 appearance that 
was dubbed a "magnificent" piece of ar
chirecrure in a newspaper anicle in the 

/ 

'30s. In November 2011, the Town of 
Boone posred the winning bid in a foreclo
sure aucrion and purchased the old thearre 
for 5624,500, which included $75,000 
of Downrown Boone De\·elopmem Asso
ciation funds (DBDA). The DBDA agreed 
ro pay back rhe town wirhin rhree years. 
Well, that happened in Julr -a year-and
a-half early. Throughout rhat process, the 
DBDA nurtured the crearion of the incor
porated nonprofit Appalachian Theatre of 
rhe High Country, which rook possession 
ot rhe deed and rhe keys to rhe proper£}' in 
rhe summer of 2013. 

Wonderful Space, 
Wonderful People 

As soon as the foreclosure auction end
ed .md the rown rook possession of rhe rhe· 
atre. community members, business leaders. 
rown officials, culrural connoisseurs and 
experts in the am, architecture, business, 
.:onsrruction and orher necessary fields 
mer and formed the Appalachian Thearre 
Reno\·arion Task Force. A few months after 
rhat first meeting, :1 financial consultant was 
hired ro oversee rhe capital campaign, which 
included interviewing prominent, prospec· 
rive donors, raising money and applying 
for available grams rhar would enable rhe 
group ro not only purchase and resrore rhe 
hisroric rheatre bur also fund future opera
tion costs. In the initial meetings wirh the fi
nancial consulranrs, a preliminary monetary 
goal of $6.2 million was thrown our, which 
included $4.2 mill ion for refurbishing rhe 

62 HI GH CO UNTRY MAGA ZH~E Dutmba l !ll.l 

050714 BCC Meeting

45



old theatre, $1.2 million for a three-year operating budget to allow 
for learning and growth and the acquisition of the building. 

Renovations include restoring the removed electrical and 
plumbing systems, finishing the interior wall surfaces and an deco 
style, and new theatre searing that meers ADA requirementS. Also, 
the original theatre fa~ade and neon marquee are ro be restored. 
Those involved in the project are constantly searching for any 
items, photos or knowledge of the historical aspects of rhe theatre. 
Recently, two sisters- Pam Fisher and Julie Srorie Cline- donated 
an original 1938 program from the opening night that belonged 
in their mother's scrapbook. The group also located some of rhe 
interior light fixtures and pieces of the facade decorative glass that 
adorned the outside of the 1 938 theatre. 

The silent phase of the capital campaign has yer to end, bur 
John Cooper, chair of the board of trustees for the theater non
profit, said the end is in sight. "We are getting close to our goal to 
go public," Cooper said. So far, more than 50 percent of the unan
nounced goal has been raised, and Cooper added that it was likely 
at that time to have the architectural renderings completed, which 
he said would reconfirm the due diligence efforts as ir perrains to 
refurbishing costs. 

While it's still too early to begin looking back at this project, 
Cooper did say that two thi11gs have stood out to him so far- the 
space and the people involved in this effort. Echoing Bettie Bond's 
comments on the ingredients present for success, Cooper specifi
cally mentioned the mlenr, expertise and energy of the group. "We 
are thrilled the way it's going ... The theatre is an outstanding space, 
so you've got two things coming together perfectly. A wonderful 
space and wonderful people," Cooper said, "all working at the right 
place at the right time." + 

Before the building went into foreclosure, the interior 

was stripped of nearly all of the remaining decorative 

elements from the '30s and '50s. Photos by Jesse Wood 

C u oday! 
Leno r 828-758-440 I 
Boo.-.e: 828-264-3521 

West ,efferson· 336-84!.-242' 
Sparta: 336-Jn-1742 

Hckory: 828-267-9944 
Ne-.vland: 336-898-3884 

Du~m1bcr!OIJ HIGH COUNTRY MAGAZINE 63 

050714 BCC Meeting

46



A Brie f History of the Appalachian Theatre 

W. R. Winkler may have built the building we 
know today as the Appalachian Theatre in 
1938, but the origins of that theater name in 
Boone date back to 1919. That year, Winkler 
bought $300 worth of projection equipment 
and arranged with Watauga County to begin 
showing silent films in the courthouse 
basement On a good night, Winkler could 
count on forty to fifty people to sit on the 
"theater's" benches, and in time the popularity 
of his Saturday night screenings allowed for 
the addition of a Wednesday night screening 
as well. 

In 1923, Winkler sold half interest in his 
theater operation to Arthur E. Hamby, and by 
the following year the Appalachian had 
transformed into the Dixie Theater, with 
showings on Mondays, Thursdays, and 
Saturdays. The next year, 1925, Winkler and 
Hamby buil t the Pastime Theatre on West 
King Street, directly opposite the Coffey House 
in what is now the Professional Building. It 
had a seating capacity of just over 400, and 
the presence of a modest stage allowed for 
traveling western shows and some musical 
acts to perform. 

By 1937, Hamby and Winkler were ready to 
expand their enterprise, so they paid a mere 
$10.00 "and other valuable considerations" 
for a house lot on the south side of West King 
Street owned by E. N. and Blanche K. Hahn. 
Here, working from plans by Clarence P. 
Coffey of Lenoir (the same architect who 
designed Cove Creek School), Hamby and 
Winkler erected Boone's second version of the 
Appalachian Theatre, which they in turn 

leased in September 1938 (along with the 
Pastime) to A. F. Sams and A. F. Sams, Jr., of 
Statesville. Hamby and Winkler provided 
most of the furnishings and equipment, most 
notably two brand new Kaplan projectors; a 
new Western Electric sound system; seating 
for approximately 1,000 patrons; stage 
scenery, drops, and curtains; a marquee, 
complete with neon letters; and chairs for the 
office. The lessees, meanwhile, installed the 
theater's "new, first class carpets, draperies, 
[and] mezzanine and restroom furniture." 

The Appalachian's magnificent exterior was 
the first and possibly t he only known Art Deco 
building in Watauga County. I It featured 
decorative, structural glass tiles (probably 
Vitrolite or Carrara) arranged in a geometric 
pattern leading to a prominent, parapeted 
ziggurat motif, as well as a projecting neon 
marquee. When the Appalachian opened on 
November 14, 1938, its p remiere screening 
was Breaking the Ice, a film starring Bobby 
Breen and Irene Dare. The premiere bill also 
included a newsreel and a Disney featurette, 
Brave Little Tailor. Admission was tiered, at 
ten or twenty cents for the matinee and ten or 
twenty-five cents for the evening showing. 

Like the old Pastime, the Appalachian also 
offered occasional stage performances, 
primarily by traveling novelty acts, Vaudeville 
shows, and musical groups, although the 
theater was used on occasion for beauty 
contests, local stage plays, minstrel shows, 
and other community events. By 1950, the 

t While some folks describe the 1941 Cove Creek 
School as Art Deco, the National Register of Historic 
Places lists it as "collegiate gothic." 

050714 BCC Meeting

47



Sams family was operating the theater under 
the name Appalachian Amusement Company, 
a division of their Statesville Theatre 
Company. With the decline of the studio 
system in the 1950s, though, independent 
cinema fare became more widely available, 
and its affordability was attractive to the 
Appalachian Amusement Company. As a 
result, Boone saw its fair share of foreign, 
monster, and exploitation films at the 
Appalachian during the 1950s, 1960s, and 
1970s, no doubt testing the boundaries of 
Boone's comparatively conservative and 
religious social standards. 

At present, we know very little about the 
exact appearance of the original interior of the 
theater, in large part because of a popcorn fire 
on january 21, 1950. That afternoon, the teen 
operator of the open-flame popper at the rear 
of the theater went to the front of the theater 
to drop off his first batch of boxed popcorn, 
then lingered to chat with the concessions 
stand girl. During his absence, the still active 
popper burst into flames. The result was a fire 
that quickly spread, then entered the 
ventilation system. As the theater manager 
stood on stage and asked the audience to 
leave calmly, flames burst out through the air 
conditioning ducts, prompting something 
resembling a stampede. As the crowd reached 
the front doors of the theater, a large 
concussion-what one witness called "a hot 
wave" -swept through the theater. While no 
one was killed and what few injuries there 
were proved minor, the damage to the 
theater's interior was catastrophic. 

Shortly after the fire, Winkler hired Harris F. 
Ragsdale of Atlanta to complete renovations, 
and an itinerant painter came through shortly 
thereafter to complete airbrushed paintings in 
the new faux archways on the walls. When 
Winkler sued Appalachian Amusement for the 
fire damages, he described the new interior as 

"probably better than it was before." While 
this lawsuit eventually made its way to the 
North Carolina Supreme Court, the net result 
was rather anticlimactic, and the relationship 
among Winkler. Hamby, and Appalachian 
Amusement continued for many years 
thereafter. By 1976, though. W. R. Winkler 
and his wife Effie-who by now owned the 
building outright-found a new lessee in 
Essantee Theatres, Inc., of Charlotte. This 
relationship continued until September 1981, 
when Essantee bought the theater from the 
Winklers for ten dollars and "other good, 
valuable, and sufficient considerations." 

Shortly after taking ownership of the theater, 
Essantee enclosed the balcony, converted the 
theater to two screens, renovated the lobby, 
and changed the theater's name to the 
Appalachian Twin. After the theater 
transformed into a late-run dollar cinema 
because it could not compete with the arrival 
of the multiplex, Cannike Cinemas obtained 
the building as part of its 1986 pmchase of 
Essantee. Carmike operated the twin cinema 
until November 29, 2007, when it closed the 
business and sold the property to a developer, 
who promptly stripped the building of many 
of its remaining architectural finishes on both 
the exterior and interior. The Town of Boone 
purchased the building in 2011 as part of that 
developer's bankruptcy proceedings. The 
Appalachian Theatre ofthe High Country-a 
non-profit organization committed to 
recreating the theater's former glory and 
preserving its history-is working with the 
Downtown Boone Development Association 
to purchase the building and transform it into 
one of the High Country's premier arts and 
culture venues. 

--Craig Fischer, Frank Mohler, and Eric Plaag 

050714 BCC Meeting

48



' 

Behind the Curtains 
By Phil Fuhrer (reporter@mountaintimes.com) 
Article Publish ed: Mar. 6, 2013 

At the bi t·th 76 years ago, the swanky new 
Appalachian Theater had its house in order 

Admission was a quarter for adults, a dime for kids, 
and the first movie was "Brea l<ing the Ice," starring 
Bobby Breen. 

Now, as the rebirth is breaking on the horizon, plans 
a re in full swing for a renovated and restored 
Appalachian Theatre to transpose the last two 
letters of its name and become a glorious home to 
performing arts group of all l<inds. 

"There must be at least three dozen cultura l 

Moviegoers line up outside the Appalachian Theater In 
downtown Boone to watch the 1947 comedy, 'Jiggs and 
Maggie in Society,' starring Joe Yule and Renlo Rlano. 

Photo courtesy of the Town of Boone 

organizations and arts groups from around the region who will mal<e use of a reborn Appalachian 
Theatre," said I\eith Martin, vice chairman of the newly minted board of trustees for the Appalachian 
Theatre of the High Country. 

"Our mission in the coming months and years is to insure the new theater meets the needs of these 
different local performing ar ts agencies, as well as providing a stage for regional and national touring 
groups." 

The 18-men1ber board has John Cooper, of Mast General Store, as chairman, and as vice chairman, 
Franl< Mohler, theatrical designer and professor emeritus from Appalachian State, who is responsible 
fo r design and construction, and Martin, distinguished professor for the ASU Departmen t of Theatre 
and D ance, who will guide the operations and programming. 

The place is even going high hat grammatically. With an ''er," a theater is just a pedestrian place 
showing cinema and films. But with an 're,' a theatre is home to live performiug arts, cultural activities 
and educational classes, as 'vvell. 

When it comes to giving the theater new life as a theatt·e, there are two het·oes needing a bow, Martin 
said. 

- I -

050714 BCC Meeting

49



"Those two heroes, of course, are the Boone Town Council, which provided the funding to acquire the 
venue and the DBDA (Downtown Boone Development Association), which served as the fiscal agent 
until the newly formed agency obtained its non-profit status and its plan fot· capital funding," he said. 

The town of Boone purchased the foreclosed J{ing Street cinema, formerly the Appalachian Twin 
Theater, for $624,000. 

And now that the newly formed agency, the Appalachian Theatre of the High Country, has its name, 
its boa rd, its community outreach in high gear and is awaiting the official OK on its tax-exempt status, 
the planning and fundraising can begin. 

Pilar Fotta, formerly DBDA coordinator and now the town's cultural resources director, has said the 
fundraising effort will include reimbursing the Town of Boone for the building. Further, revenues 
raised will cover renovating and staffing the theater and a fund for tiered-down facility operation "to 
create a financially stable and much- needed community arts space." 

While the planning and fundraising is going on, Cooper, Martin and Mohler will concentrate on what 
things willlool< like at the inaugural curtain-raising. When will that be? Any date, and even a realistic 
fund- raising goal, would be j11st speculation at this point, Martin said. 

From an operations and performance perspective, 
Martin sa id the renovations, based on a survey of 
potential user groups, could include: 

-an orchestra pit; 
-an expanded stage area; 
- a sprung-wooden floor su itable for dance 

performances; 
-enhanced li ghting and sound systems; 
-additional dressing rooms; 
-an upgraded lobby and restroom faci lities. 

A perfect example of why the agency is shy about 
announcing a fundraising financial figure, Martin 
said, is the orchestra pit. 

"We aren't even at the architectural stage yet, so who can imagine the difference in the cost for an 
orches tra pit for six musicians versus one for 36 musicians, for exampl e," he said. 

Besides the performing arts and cultural g roups who will benefit - among dozens of poten tial user 
groups are the Blue Ridge Community Theatre, Mountain IIome Music, In/ Visible Theatre, High 
Country Playwrights Forum and various local dance schools - the new agency's mission statement 
also focuses on education, promising to olfer the facility on a rental basi s to user groups for education 
and outreach purposes, a crucial way to get students and community members engaged in the 
Appalachian Theatre. 

-2-

050714 BCC Meeting

50



'11rts are fundamental to our humanity. 
They ennoble and inspire us -fostering creativity, goodness, 

and beauty. The arts help us express our values, 
build bridges between cultures, and bring us together 

regardless of ethnicity, religion, or age." 

-Americans for the Arts 

The Importance of Arts Education and Outreach 
Beyond the critical social and economic roles the arts play in our communities is 
the learning and human development that takes place through the arts. 

A 2002 report by Americans for the Arts cited numerous ways in which the arts 
promote cognitive, motor, language, and social-emotional development. According 
to that report, "The arts nurture important values, including team-building skills, 
respect for alternative viewpoints, and an appreciation of different cultures and 
traditions. When teachers encourage children's spirit of creative play through 
singing, dancing, drawing, and role-playing, they are laying the foundation for -
and even helping wire children's brains for - successful learning. The arts play a 
crucial role in improving students' abilities to learn because they draw on a 
range of intelligences and learning styles~ not just the linguistic and logical
mathematical intelligences upon which most schools are based." 

Studies show that students with an education rich in the arts have higher GPAs and 
standardized test scores, lower dropout rates, and even better attitudes about 
community service - benefits reaped by students regardless of socio-economic 
status. Students with four years of arts or music education in high school average 
100 points better on their SAT scores than students with one half year or less. 

For adult learners, the presence of art forms such as music, dance, theatre, visual 
arts and literature in their daily lives plays an important role in enhancing quality of 
life. Whether it's the joy that comes from listening to music, the inspiration derived 
from reading great works of fiction or the powerful experience of attending live 
theatre or a museum filled with great art- the impact is real and profound. For 
most adults, the arts elevate their spirits and "transport them," emotionally and 
intellectually, while broadening their world view and shaping their perspective. All 
of these elements reinforce and contribute to the life-long learning process 
that most adults define as central to their sense of fulfillment and happiness. 

050714 BCC Meeting

51



Arts in the High Country: Rich in Heritage and Tradition 
High Country residents and visitors currently enjoy an abundance of arts education 
and outreach programming. School performances and residency programs, music 
and dance classes, visual arts workshops, summer camps, theatre/drama programs 
for adults and children, choral groups and poetry clubs offer a rich diversity of year
round programming for audiences of all ages. 

The Need for Communication and Coordination for Arts Education 
Despite the availability of these resources, the effective delivery of arts education 
programming in our community is compromised by the fact that there is currently 
little coordination among the various organizations conducting arts education and 
outreach activities. Service providers report that programming is often 
duplicated, and that scheduled activities often conflict, because there is no 
avenue for communication and facilitation of services. As a result, potential 
recipients and target audiences for arts education programming are not able to take 
full advantage of the available programming. If arts education activities were 
coordinated, those same audiences might participate in multiple activities, and 
experience a broader array of unique services and resources. 

Providers of arts education and outreach programs further report that the 
Appalachian Theatre could fulfill this important function in facilitating 
existing programming, serving as a "clearinghouse for arts education and 
outreach programs" for our community. In doing so, the Appalachian Theatre 
would support and strengthen the activities already taking place in our region, 
rather than duplicating efforts. 

Growing out of increased communication and facilitation is a longer-term benefit to 
our community: innovative arts education programming that is likely to result from 
organizations working together, rather than in isolation from one another. 

One example identified by arts education providers is the idea of an annual 
Children's Theatre Festival in which multiple community-based theatre companies 
work together to establish a weekend-long, annual theatre festival geared to young 
audiences. Each of the participating theatre companies would do what they do best 
-- presenting their own unique brand of children's theatre -- and audiences would 
have the opportunity to enjoy the work of multiple companies presented in one 
space (the Appalachian Theatre) and as part of one festival. Each company would 
create and present its own performances, with the Appalachian Theatre providing 
administrative facilitation and "presenting" the festival. 

050714 BCC Meeting

52



This is just one example of what might be possible when organizations begin to 
work together and build on each other's strengths ... demonstrating the age-old 
adage that "the whole is greater than the sum of its parts." 

Efficient and Effective Delivery of Arts Programming 
By serving as a catalyst for creative partnerships, the Appalachian Theatre will 
support the efficient and effective delivery of arts programming, while fostering 
innovative collaborations that build new audiences for the arts, thus 
showcasing the finest artistic talent and cultural traditions of our region. 

A Community "Hub" for Arts Education and Outreach Programming 
Another critical need among existing arts education organizations and programs 
across our region is physical space. Many of the organizations presenting arts 
education activities do not have access to the space they need, and are not in a 
position to rent facilities. Whether it's space for a weeklong summer camp, a visual 
arts workshop, a dance class, or the high school's "Open Mike Night" for poetry 
enthusiasts --The Appalachian Theatre is uniquely qualified to fill these needs. 

The Appalachian Theatre would establish itself as an important community "hub" 
for arts education and outreach programming designed to serve our entire region. 
A goal of the Appalachian Theatre is to help subsidize, through free or discounted 
facility rental rates, the cost for organizations providing arts education activities. 

The Arts: An Engine for Economic Development in Watauga County 
When used in conjunction with other economic development engines, the arts can 
greatly contribute to the revitalization and economic development of downtown 
areas. National studies have indicated that a high concentration of arts in a town 
leads to higher civic engagement, more social cohesion, higher child welfare, and 
lower poverty rates. A vibrant arts community beautifies and animates towns, 
provides employment, attracts residents and tourists, complements adjacent 
businesses, enhances property values, expands the tax base, helps attract and retain 
well-educated employees, and contributes to a creative and innovative 
environment. 

The Arts Benefit Our Local Merchants 
Event-related spending by arts and culture audiences in Watauga County totaled 
$6.5 million in 2010 (excluding the cost of admission). The typical arts attendee 
spent $29.88 per person, per event- not including the cost of admission- on items 
such as lodging, meals, parking, and souvenirs. Attendees who live outside Watauga 
County make up 57% of our arts patrons, and they spent nearly three times as much 
as our local residents ($41.74 vs. $13.70), which is a valuable revenue stream for 
local businesses and the community. 

050714 BCC Meeting

53



APPALACHIAN THEATRE, Watauga County, Historic and Current Images 

Image 1: Appalachian Theatre, -1948, courtesy of 
Appalachian Theatre Task Force and Town of Boone 

Image 2: Appalachian Theatre Fire, 1950, courtesy of 
Watauga Democrat 

Image 3: Appalachian Theatre Concessions/Lobby area, 
post-1950, courtesy of Appalachian Theatre Task Force 
and Town of Boone 

Image 4: Appalachian Theatre Auditorium, post-1950, 
courtesy of Appalachian Theatre Task Force and Town 
of Boone 

' I 

Image 5: Example of1950s "Ragsdale" mural with sconce, 
Appalachian Theatre Auditorium, circa 1978, from early 
1980s NCSHPO Site Survey 

Image 6: Appalachian Theatre, circa 1978, from early 
1980s NCSHPO Site Survey 

050714 BCC Meeting

54



Image 7: Appalachian Theatre, circa 2002, from 2002 
NCSHPO Site Survey 

Image 8: Appalachian Theatre, SE oblique, June 25,2011, 
photo by Eric Plaag 

Image 9: Temporary Fa~ade prior to planned renovations 
October, 2012. 

Image 10: Appalachian Theatre, Future Community and 
Special Events Space over Lobby; capacity 250-300 

Image 11: Appalachian Theatre, panoramic image looking 
toward balcony from stage, Dec. 2011, courtesy of 
Appalachian Theatre Task Force and Town of Boone 

Image 12: Appalachian Theatre, looking toward stage 
from balcony area, Dec. 2011, courtesy of Appalachian 
Theatre Task Force and Town of Boone 

050714 BCC Meeting

55



050714 BCC Meeting

56



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PROPOSED AUDIT CONTRACT FOR FY 2014 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Kathy Brown, Bryce Holder, CPA, PA, will present the contract for conducting the FY 
2013-2014 financial audit.  The contract is for $40,000 for audit services.  The price is $5,400 
less than last year due to the County assuming the preparation of the financial statements.   
 
Adequate funds have been budgeted in the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 proposed budget.  Board 
approval is requested to accept Bryce Holder CPA’s contract for the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 
financial audit in the amount of $40,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

57



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Bryce Holder, CPA, PA Contract for FY 13-14  
 DATE: April 29, 2014 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the fiscal year 2013-14 audit contract with Bryce Holder, CPA, PA. 
This contract reflects a reduction of $5,400 from last year’s fee as the Finance 
Department has transitioned to preparing the financial statements and Holder’s firm 
determined less hours are required due to this change. The funding for this contract is 
requested in the Finance Department budget in FY 14-15.  
 
Board approval is requested for a contract amount not to exceed $40,000 with Bryce 
Holder, CPA, PA to complete the County’s Fiscal Year 13-14 audit. 

050714 BCC Meeting

58



LGC-205 (Rev. 2014) 
CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS

Of ________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) if applicable

On this ____________________ day of ____________________________, ___________,

Auditor:____________________________________________________ Auditor Mailing Address: __________________________

____________________________________________________________________________ Hereinafter referred to as The Auditor

and ________________________________________________ (Governing Board (s)) of___________________________________

__________________________________________________ : hereinafter referred to as the Governmental Unit (s), agree as follows:
Governmental Unit (s)

1. The Auditor shall audit all statements and disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and 
additional required legal statements and disclosures of all funds and/or divisions of the Governmental Unit (s) for the period 
beginning _________________, _________, and ending ___________________, _________. The non-major combining, and 
individual fund statements and schedules shall be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and an opinion will be rendered in relation to (as applicable) the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate DPCU’s, each major governmental and enterprise fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information (non-major 
government and enterprise funds, the internal service fund type, and the fiduciary fund types).

2. At a minimum, the Auditor shall conduct his/her audit and render his/her report in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. The Auditor shall perform the audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards if required by the State Single
Audit Implementation Act, as codified in G.S. 159-34. If required by OMB Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, the Auditor shall perform a Single Audit. This 
audit and all associated workpapers may be subject to review by Federal and State agencies in accordance with Federal and State 
laws, including the staffs of the Office of State Auditor (OSA) and the Local Government Commission (LGC). If the audit 
and/or workpapers are found in this review to be substandard, the results of the review may be forwarded to the North Carolina 
State Board of CPA Examiners (NC CPA Board).

County and Multi-County Health Departments:  The Office of State Auditor will designate certain programs that have eligibility 
requirements to be considered major programs in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the State of North Carolina.  The 
LGC will notify the auditor and the County and Multi-Health Department of these programs.  A County or a Multi-County 
Health Department may be selected to audit any of these programs as major.    

3. If an entity is determined to be a component of another government as defined by the group audit standards - the entity’s auditor 
will make a good faith effort to comply in a timely manner with the requests of the group auditor in accordance with AU-6
§600.41 - §600.42.

4. This contract contemplates an unqualified opinion being rendered. The audit shall include such tests of the accounting records
and such other auditing procedures as are considered by the Auditor to be necessary in the circumstances. Any limitations or 
restrictions in scope which would lead to a qualification should be fully explained in an attachment to this contract.

5. If this audit engagement is subject to the standards for audit as defined in Government Auditing Standards, 2011 revisions, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, then by accepting this engagement, the Auditor warrants that he has met 
the requirements for a peer review and continuing education as specified in Government Auditing Standards. The Auditor agrees 
to provide a copy of their most recent peer review report regardless of the date of the prior peer review report to the 
Governmental Unit and the Secretary of the LGC prior to the execution of the audit contract (See Item 22). If the audit firm 
received a peer review rating other than pass, the Auditor shall not contract with the Governmental Unit without first 
contacting the Secretary of the LGC for a peer review analysis that may result in additional contractual requirements.

If the audit engagement is not subject to Government Accounting Standards or if financial statements are not prepared in 
accordance with GAAP and fail to include all disclosures required by GAAP, the Auditor shall provide an explanation as to why
in an attachment..

6. It is agreed that time is of the essence in this contract. All audits are to be performed and the report of audit submitted to the 
State and Local Government Finance Division (SLGFD) within four months of fiscal year end. Audit report is due on:
__________________________, _________.  If it becomes necessary to amend this due date or the audit fee, an amended 
contract along with a written explanation of the delay must be submitted to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.

Watauga County

7th May 2014

Bryce Holder, CPA,PA PO Box 1908, Boone, NC 28607

Board of County Commissioners Watauga County

July 1 2013 June 30 2014

October 31 2014

050714 BCC Meeting

59



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
                 Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable  

7. It is agreed that generally accepted auditing standards include a review of the Governmental Unit’s systems of internal control 
and accounting as same relates to accountability of funds and adherence to budget and law requirements applicable thereto; that
the Auditor will make a written report, which may or may not be a part of the written report of audit, to the Governing Board 
setting forth his findings, together with his recommendations for improvement. That written report must include all matters 
defined as “significant deficiencies and material weaknesses” in AU-C 265 of the AICPA Professional Standards (Clarified).
The Auditor shall file a copy of that report with the Secretary of the LGC.

8. All local government and public authority contracts for audit or audit-related work require the approval of the Secretary of the 
LGC.  This includes annual or special audits, agreed upon procedures related to internal controls, bookkeeping or other 
assistance necessary to prepare the Governmental Unit’s records for audit, financial statement preparation, any finance-related 
investigations, or any other audit-related work in the State of North Carolina. Invoices for services rendered under these 
contracts shall not be paid by the Governmental Unit until the invoice has been approved by the Secretary of the LGC.
(This also includes any progress billings.) [G.S. 159-34 and 115C-447]  All invoices for Audit work must be submitted by email 
in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC for approval.    The invoices must be sent to: lgc.invoice@nctreasurer.com . Subject 
line should read “Invoice – [Unit Name].   The PDF invoice marked ‘approved’ with approval date will be returned by email to 
the Auditor to present to the Governmental Unit for payment.   Approval is not required on contracts and invoices for system 
improvements and similar services of a non-auditing nature.

9. In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the provisions of this contract, the Governmental Unit shall pay to the 
Auditor, upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, the following fee, which includes any cost the Auditor may incur from work 
paper or peer reviews or any other quality assurance program required by third parties (Federal and State grantor and oversight 
agencies or other organizations) as required under the Federal and State Single Audit Acts:  

Year-end bookkeeping assistance – [For audits subject to Government Auditing Standards, this is limited to bookkeeping services 

permitted by revised Independence Standards] ____________________________________________________________________

Audit______________________________________________________________________________________________________

Preparation of the annual financial statements___________________________________________________________________
Prior to submission of the completed audited financial report, applicable compliance reports and amended contract (if required) the 
Auditor may submit invoices for approval for services rendered, not to exceed 75% of the total of the stated fees above.  If the current 
contracted fee is not fixed in total, invoices for services rendered may be approved for up to 75% of the prior year audit fee. The 75% 
cap for interim invoice approval for this audit contract is $_____________________________________** NA if no interim billing

10. If the Governmental Unit has outstanding revenue bonds, the Auditor shall include documentation either in the notes to the 
audited financial statements or as a separate report submitted to the SLGFD along with the audit report, a calculation 
demonstrating compliance with the revenue bond rate covenant.  Additionally, the Auditor should be aware that any other bond 
compliance statements or additional reports required in the authorizing bond documents need to be submitted to the SLGFD
simultaneously with the Governmental Unit's audited financial statements unless otherwise specified in the bond documents.

11. After completing the audit, the Auditor shall submit to the Governing Board a written report of audit. This report shall include 
but not be limited to the following information: (a) Management’s Discussion and Analysis, (b) the financial statements and 
notes of the Governmental Unit and all of its component units prepared in accordance with GAAP, (c) supplementary 
information requested by the client or required for full disclosure under the law, and (d) the Auditor’s opinion on the material 
presented. The Auditor shall furnish the required number of copies of the report of audit to the Governing Board as soon as 
practical after the close of the accounting period.

12.  If the audit firm is required by the NC CPA Board or the Secretary of the LGC to have a pre-issuance review of their audit work, 
there must be a statement added to the engagement letter specifying the pre-issuance review including a statement that the 
Governmental Unit will not be billed for the pre-issuance review.  The pre-issuance review must be performed prior to the 
completed audit being submitted to the LGC.  The pre-issuance report must accompany the audit report upon submission to the 
LGC.   

13. The Auditor shall electronically submit the report of audit to the LGC when (or prior to) submitting the invoice for services 
rendered.  The report of audit, as filed with the Secretary of the LGC, becomes a matter of public record for inspection, review 
and copy in the offices of the SLGFD by any interested parties. Any subsequent revisions to these reports must be sent to the 
Secretary of the LGC. These audited financial statements are used in the preparation of official statements for debt offerings (the 
Auditors’ opinion is not included) by municipal bond rating services to fulfill secondary market disclosure requirements of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and other lawful purposes of the Governmental Unit without subsequent consent of the 

Watauga County

at our standard governmental billing rates not to exceed $40,000.00

30,000.00

050714 BCC Meeting

60



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
                 Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable  

Auditor.  If it is determined by the LGC that corrections need to be made to the Governmental Unit’s financial statements, they 
should be provided within three days of notification unless, another time frame is agreed to by the LGC.  

If the OSA designates certain programs to be audited as major programs, as discussed in item #2, a turnaround document and a 
representation letter addressed to the OSA shall be submitted to the LGC.  

The LGC’s process for submitting contracts, audit reports and Invoices is subject to change.  Auditors should use the submission 
process in effect at the time of submission.  The most current instructions will be found on our website: 
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx

14. Should circumstances disclosed by the audit call for a more detailed investigation by the Auditor than necessary under ordinary 
circumstances, the Auditor shall inform the Governing Board in writing of the need for such additional investigation and the 
additional compensation required therefore. Upon approval by the Secretary of the LGC, this contract may be varied or changed 
to include the increased time and/or compensation as may be agreed upon by the Governing Board and the Auditor

15. If an approved contract needs to be varied or changed for any reason, the change must be made in writing, signed and dated by 
all parties and pre-audited if the change includes a change in audit fee.  This document and a written explanation of the change 
must be submitted by email in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC for approval. The portal address to upload your amended 
contract and letter of explanation documents is   http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net No change shall be effective unless 
approved by the Secretary of the LGC, the Governing Board, and the Auditor.

16. Whenever the Auditor uses an engagement letter with the Governmental Unit, Item #17 is to be completed by referencing the 
engagement letter and attaching a copy of the engagement letter to the contract to incorporate the engagement letter into the 
contract. In case of conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of this contract 
will control. Engagement letter terms are deemed to be void unless the conflicting terms of this contract are specifically deleted 
in Item #23 of this contract. Engagement letters containing indemnification clauses will not be approved by the LGC.

17. Special provisions should be limited.  Please list any special provisions in an attachment. 

18. A separate contract should not be made for each division to be audited or report to be submitted.   If a DPCU is subject to the 
audit requirements detailed in the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a 
separate audit contract is required.  If a separate report is not issued and the DPCU is included in the primary government audit, 
the DPCU must be named along with the parent government on this audit contract. Signatures from the DPCU Board chairman 
and finance officer also must be included on this contract.

19. The contract must be executed, pre-audited, physically signed by all parties including Governmental Unit and Auditor signatures 
and submitted in PDF format to the Secretary of the LGC.  The current portal address to upload your contractual documents is   
http://nctreasurer.slgfd.leapfile.net Electronic signatures are not accepted at this time.  Included with this contract are
instructions to submit contracts and invoices for approval as of April, 2014.  These instructions are subject to change.  Please 
check the NC Treasurer’s web site at www.nctreasurer.com for the most recent instructions.

20. The contract is not valid until it is approved by the LGC Secretary.  The staff of the LGC shall notify the Governmental Unit and 
Auditor of contract approval by email.  The audit should not be started before the contract is approved.

21. There are no other agreements between the parties hereto and no other agreements relative hereto that shall be enforceable unless 
entered into in accordance with the procedure set out herein and approved by the Secretary of the LGC.

22. Municipal & County Contracts: The Auditor acknowledges that any private employer transacting business in this State who 
employs 25 or more employees in this State must, when hiring an employee to work in the United States, use E Verify to verify
the work authorization of the employee in accordance with N.C.G.S. §64 26(a).  The Auditor acknowledges further that any such 
private employer and its subcontractors must comply with all of the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes (North Carolina’s E-verify law), and that such private employer has a duty under the law to ensure 
compliance by its subcontractors.  The Auditor further acknowledges that this contract is of the type governed by S.L. 2013-418, 
which makes it unlawful for a local government to enter into certain types of contracts unless the contractor and its 
subcontractors comply with North Carolina’s E-verify law, and that failure to comply with such law could render this contract 
void.  The Auditor hereby covenants, warrants and represents for itself and its subcontractors that with respect to this contract the 
Auditor and its subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of North Carolina’s E-verify law and that failure to comply with 
such law shall be deemed a breach of this contract and may render this contract void.

23.     All of the above paragraphs are understood and shall apply to this contract, except the following numbered paragraphs shall be 
deleted: (See Item 16 for clarification).

Watauga County
050714 BCC Meeting

61



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
                 Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable  

Communication regarding audit contract requests for modification or official approvals will be sent to the 
email addresses provided in the spaces below.

Audit Firm Signature: Unit Signatures (continued):

_________________________________________________
Name of Audit Firm

By_______________________________________________
Authorized Audit firm representative name: Type or print 

__________________________________________________
Signature of authorized audit firm representative

Email Address of Audit Firm:

Date______________________________________________

Governmental Unit Signatures:

By_______________________________________________
Mayor / Chairperson: Type or print name and title

__________________________________________________
Signature of Mayor/Chairperson of governing board

Date______________________________________________

By_______________________________________________
DPCU Chairperson: Type or print name and title

__________________________________________________
Signature of Chairperson of DPCU if applicable

Date______________________________________________

By _______________________________________________
Chair of Audit Committee - Type or print name

________________________________________________**
Signature of Audit Committee Chairperson
Date______________________________________________
** If Governmental Unit has no audit committee, this section 
should be marked "N/A."

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE: Required by G.S. 159-28 (a)
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by 
The Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the 
School Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  Additionally, the following
date is the date this audit contract was approved by the governing 
body.

By_______________________________________________
Governmental Unit Finance Officer: Type or print name

Finance Officer Signature

_________________________________________________
Email Address of Finance Officer

Date______________________________________________
(Pre-audit Certificate must be dated.)

Date Governing Body Approved Audit Contract - G.S. 
159-34(a )
_______________________________________________
Board Approval Date – Primary Government

Board Approval Date - DPCU 

Watauga County

Bryce Holder, CPA,PA
N/A

Kathleen R. Mitchell

kathy@bryceholdercpa.com

Nathan A. Miller, Chair
Margaret Pierce

May 7, 2014
margaret.pierce@watgov.org

N/A
May 7, 2014

050714 BCC Meeting

62



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
                 Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable  

Steps to Completing the Audit Contract
1. Complete the Header Information – NEW: If a DPCU is subject to the audit requirements as detailed in 

the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and a separate audit report is issued, a separate 
audit contract is required.  If a separate report is not issued for the DPCU and is to be included in the
Primary Government’s audit, the DPCU must be named with the parent government on this Audit 
contract. The Board chairman of the DPCU also must sign the Audit contract.

2. Item No. 1 – Complete the period covered by the audit

3. Item No. 6 – Fill in the audit due date.  For Governmental Unit (s), the contract due date can be no later 
than 4 months after the end of the fiscal year, even though amended contracts may not be required until a 
later date.    

4. Item No. 8 – if the process for invoice approval instructions changed, the Auditor should make sure he 
and his administrative staff are familiar with the current process. Instructions for each process can be 
found at the following link. https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx

5. Item No. 9 – Complete the fee section as in the past but please note:

The cap on interim payments is 75% of the current audit fee for services rendered if the 
contracted fee amount is a fixed amount.  If any part of the fee is variable, interim payments are 
limited to 75% of the prior year’s total audit fee.  If the contract fee is partially variable, we will 
compare the authorized interim payment on the contract to 75% of last year’s actual approved 
total audit fee amount according to our records. There is a report of audit fees paid by each 
governmental unit on our web site: https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Non-Audit-Services-
and-Audit-Fees.aspx - Auditors and Audit Fees.
Please call or email Steven Holmberg of our office at 919-807-2394
steven.holmberg@nctreasurer.com if you have any questions about the fees on this list. 

For variable fees for services, are the hourly rates or other rates clearly stated in detail?  If issued 
separately in an addendum, has the separate page been acknowledged in writing by the 
Governmental Unit?

For fees for services that are a combination of fixed and variable fees, are the services to be 
provided for the fixed portion of the fee clearly stated?  Are the hourly rates or other rates clearly 
stated for the variable portion of the fee? See previous bullet point regarding variable fees.

If there is to be no interim billing, please indicate N/A instead of leaving the line blank. 

6. Item No. 16 – If there is a reference to an engagement letter or other document (ex: Addendum), has the 
engagement letter or other document been acknowledged by the Governmental Unit and attached to the 
contract submitted to the SLGFD?

a. Do the terms and fees specified in the engagement letter agree with the Audit contract?  “In case 
of conflict between the terms of the engagement letter and the terms of this contract, the terms of 
this contract will control.”

b. Does the engagement letter contain an indemnification clause? The audit contract will not 
be approved if there is an indemnification clause – refer to LGC Memo # 986.

Watauga County 050714 BCC Meeting

63



Contract to Audit Accounts (cont.) _______________________________________________________________________ 
                 Name of Governmental Unit and Discretely Presented Component Unit’s (DPCU) if applicable  

7. Item No. 22 – E-verify requirements now apply to all municipal and county contracts, including the 
audit contract.  There is no e-verify requirement for the audit contract for other types of entities The best 
approach to meeting e-verify requirements may be for the municipal or county local government to have 
its vendors with 25 or more employees in the State of North Carolina sign a document attesting that they 
have complied with the e-verify requirements for their staff and their sub-contractors.  This language is 
included in Item 22 of the audit contract.  Any municipal or county contracts executed Sept 4, 2013 or 
later whose audit firm has 25 or more employees in the State of North Carolina will need the 
addendum/language and will be returned to the unit if it is not included. If the e-verify requirements do 
not apply to your contract, either because you are a city or county but your audit firm has less than 25 
employees, or you are an entity to which e-verify does not apply, please mark Item #22 “N/A” or exclude 
Item #22 by specifically excluding it in Item #23.  

8. Signature Area – Make sure all signatures have been obtained.  The contract must be approved by 
your Governing Board pursuant to G.S. 159-34(a). NEW - If this contract includes auditing a DPCU 
that is a Public Authority under the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act it must be named
in this Audit contract and the Board chairperson of the DPCU must also sign the Audit contract in the 
area indicated. If the DPCU has a separate Audit, a separate Audit contract is required for the DPCU.

9. Please place the date the Unit’s Governing Board and the DPCU’s governing Board (if applicable)
approved the audit contract in the space provided.

a. Please make sure that you provide email addresses for the audit firm and finance officer as these
will be used to communicate official approval of the contract.

b. Has the pre-audit certificate been signed and dated by the appropriate party?

c. Has the name and title of the Mayor or Chairperson of the Unit’s Governing Board and the 
DPCU’s Chairperson (if applicable) been typed or printed on the contract and has he/she signed 
in the correct area directly under the Auditor’s signature?

10. If the Auditor is performing an audit under the yellow book or single audit rules, has year-end 
bookkeeping assistance been limited to those areas permitted under the revised GAO Independence 
Standards?  Although not required, we encourage Governmental Units and Auditors to disclose the 
nature of these services in the contract or an engagement letter. Fees for these services should be shown 
in the space indicated in Item 9 of the contract.

11. Has the most recently issued peer review report for the audit firm been included with the contract? This 
is required if the audit firm has received a new peer review report that has not yet been forwarded to us.  
The audit firm is only required to send the most current Peer Review report to us once – not multiple 
times.

12. After all the signatures have been obtained and the contract and is complete, please convert the contract 
and all other supporting documentation to be submitted for approval into a PDF copy.  Peer Review
Reports should be submitted in a separate PDF file.  These documents should be submitted using the 
most current submission process which can be obtained at the NC Treasurer’s web site –
https://www.nctreasurer.com/slg/Pages/Audit-Forms-and-Resources.aspx.

Watauga County 050714 BCC Meeting

64



050714 BCC Meeting

65



050714 BCC Meeting

66



050714 BCC Meeting

67



050714 BCC Meeting

68



050714 BCC Meeting

69



050714 BCC Meeting

70



050714 BCC Meeting

71



050714 BCC Meeting

72



050714 BCC Meeting

73



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

74



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A.  Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing and Striping Project 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will present bids for asphalt sealing and striping.  Two 
bids were received with Hickory Sealing and Striping being the lowest responsive bidder in the 
amount of $19,961.50.  Hickory Sealing and Striping satisfactorily completed previous County 
projects.  Included in your packets are the areas to be sealed and striped.  Adequate funds are 
available in the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 budget.   
 
Staff would recommend the Board award the bid to Hickory Sealing and Striping in the amount 
of $19,961.50 for asphalt sealing and striping.   
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

75



 

 
      W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
         MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
        969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                             Fax    (828) 264-1473 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendation for Bid Award of Asphalt Sealing and Striping Project 
 
DATE:  April 21, 2014   
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Watauga County Maintenance received two bids for asphalt sealing and striping on 
March 28, 2014.  A second round of bidding concluded April 17th and yielded no 
additional bids. 
 
BID SUMMARY 
 
BIDDER TOTAL PRICE FOR 

LIQUID ROAD 
TOTAL PRICE FOR 

GUARD TOP 
Carolina Pavement Care 
Roxboro, NC 

$57,426.00  

Hickory Sealing & Striping 
Connelly Springs, NC 

 $19,961.50 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This work was identified in the Asphalt Maintenance Plan and there is money in the FY 
13-14 Maintenance Department Budget to pay for this $19,961.50 expense.    
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the County award this project to Hickory Sealing and Striping.  
This company has successfully completed several previous projects for Watauga County 
with very good results.      
 
   
 

050714 BCC Meeting

76



Watauga County, NC 

rJ tJ.--+C<.~a. eoUfl?; A-J· B!Jr 
q 7 I We s f !G n5 .Sf. 

8tJone , (I.) C- J- Y6 0 7 

I 
1 

I 0 0 .5'1 c1 P c...vk·hJ fire c.__. ( tJ.ppev !.of- <f- Dr,"ve.) 

I I Pv.-r lv 'j Sp ezce s
1 

cJ.. t-1 /c .SfCt..C e-.5 
1 

'f c._ r ro u.J_s 

http://www. wataugacounty .org/ ias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?pageType= Advanced 

Page 1 of 1 

3/ 13/2014 

050714 BCC Meeting

77



Watauga County, NC 

tJ6--f-o.Uj"- Cu4 l a_w Enforce~-<-~+ Cen+er 

I&' tf !lod5tps Ce-; £J , 
f; oo f1 e , 171 C cJ- y & o 7 

Page 1 of I 

.;< 1 10 0 s '1Js f"'-' JG,ft'j Are-c._ ( cy per Lot 'f ()pje/ t)r, 've ) 

lf-1 ~~rlulllj 51~5 

http://www. wataugacounty .orglias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?page Type= Advanced 3/13/2014 

050714 BCC Meeting

78



Watauga County, NC 

WcJ-CLw;;«- Co~ /,, k, r.::.x'1 
I ttO Q v__eex) st. 
boonC2.- N C. d-?J007 

3, q ~ 1 s1d!. pQ_ r ~·"S c.. t'e.a..... 

/0 f po..o-k-<11!) 5 /c..ce..~ a_,,d- S If. C-. :>tJ<U-<"
5 

00 spa..ces, 0-r· Q..._. (\<.A.~bi2.Y~J ()Y" have.. 1-~i+ 

http://www. wataugacounty .org/ias/arcgismaps/PrintMap.aspx?page Type= Advanced 

Page 1 of 1 

3/13/2014 

050714 BCC Meeting

79



Watauga County, NC 

l
1 
too 6'-fd.s of Pc.. v kl~s 

3 \ R~su..lc.-r '5 pc...e-e. ~ 

( 'J-/ (... $ P CCC-~ 

http://www. wataugacounty .org/ias/arcgismaps/Pri ntMap.aspx?page Type= Advanced 

Page 1 of 1 

3/13/2014 

050714 BCC Meeting

80



Watauga County, NC Page 1 of 1 

oJ c,_-/-~y._ Coc.u1~ - {]t'nn PO-tluhJ Lof 
Lo CA.--1-.Qd ne-Ci.r {4 ~()rl\ef o..f &u~en ca1 d tJJu Sl-,eef

t3oorca., A/ C .J-.f00 7 

1
1 

L{-0 0 s yd~ 61 Pe-r /o',--7 Are~ 

'f7 R.tl5,_,_tc..t 5(J(..c..es- /lut41heved. 

~ ~vrow.s 

http://www 0 wataugacoun ty 0 org/ias/arc gismaps/Pri ntMa poaspx ?page Type= Advanced 3/13/20 14 

050714 BCC Meeting

81



Watauga County, NC Page 1 of 1 

{)) fi.. -hu:JO Co~- uJ a_. fer 11 tJ lA. -fv.-'14.. {u"" M. ~<IU.) CM:fev 
I 0 <6 I {) I c1 (A 0 /-f-w y tf J-/ 

) t.._3 c.. r- C ro v e_
1 

fl) v :2 2 Co 71 

J, q 00 s '-tel s o t P~v~'f\5 l+r-Qa..... 

3 { f2.p 5 t.-!~r Sptt.ces 
3 'r{-) C Sfc. ce s 

Do t'\o+ Pc.. y h-. 2o t\ e-

http://www. wataugacounty .org/ias/arcgismaps/Pri ntMap.aspx?pageType= Advanced 3/13/2014 

050714 BCC Meeting

82



 
 1 

    

   
 
 

SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

2014 PARKING LOT SEALCOAT &  
PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS 

 
 
 
 Contents 
 
Section 
 
   A  Notice to Contractors (Advertisement) 
   B  Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions 
   C  Specifications and Project Description 
   D  Proposal Form 
   E  Contract Form 

050714 BCC Meeting

83



 
 2 

 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
 PARKING LOT SEALCOAT AND PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS 

SECTION A 
  
 
 
Watauga County Building Maintenance Department is seeking bids from persons or firms 
interested in submitting bids for sealing and marking parking lots at the following Watauga 
County properties:  Agricultural Services Center, 971 West King Street, Boone, NC; Law 
Enforcement Center, 184 Hodges Gap Road, Boone, NC; Library, 140 Queen Street, Boone, NC; 
Water Street Parking Lot, corner of Queen and Water Streets, Boone, NC; Ginn Parking Lot, 
corner of Queen and Water Streets; and the Western Watauga Community Center, 1081 Old US 
Hwy. 421, Sugar Grove, NC. The scope of this work includes the seal coating of approximately 
12,141 SY of asphalt surface and restriping of 279 parking spaces.  Bids may be delivered to 
Watauga County Building Maintenance Department, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC  28607.  
Bids will be accepted until 2:00 pm Thursday, April 17, 2014.  Contact Robert Marsh, 
Maintenance Director, (828)264-1430 for more information concerning this project. 
  
Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of  
the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a guarantee that the bidder will  
honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same should a contract be offered, based  
upon his bid and the contract documents, and which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10)  
days of the offer. 
 
No bid may be withdrawn for thirty (30) days from the date bids are opened. 
 
Each bidder agrees by the submission of his bid to commence work within ten (10) days of the 
issuance by the County of a "Written Notice to Proceed" and to fully complete the work within 
twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Contract documents and other bidding information may be obtained from the Maintenance 
Director at Watauga County Maintenance Department, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607. 

050714 BCC Meeting

84



 
 3 

 
 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 PARKING LOT SEALCOAT AND PAVEMENT MARKING PROJECTS 
 
 SECTION B 
 
 1. Defined Terms: 
 

1.1. The term "County" means the Owner, the County of Watauga. 
 

1.2. The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to the County, as 
distinct from a sub bidder who submits a bid to a Bidder.   

 
1.3. The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible and 

responsive Bidder to whom the County shall make an award of the Contract. 
 

1.4. The term "Bidding Documents" includes the Advertisement, these Instructions, 
the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents. 

 
1.5. The term "Engineer" means the Maintenance Director or the Director’s designee 

assigned to this project as the Contract Administrator. 
 
 2. Bidding Documents: 
 

2.1. Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Maintenance 
Director’s office at Watauga County Maintenance. 

 
2.2. Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in the preparations of bids.  

The County assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting 
from the use of incomplete sets of the Bidding Documents. 

 
2.3. The County, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above 

terms, does so only to obtain bids on the Work, and does not confer a license or 
grant for any other use. 

 
 3. Qualifications of Bidders: 
 

3.1. Each Bidder must be prepared to submit upon request such written evidence as 
may be requested to demonstrate the Bidders qualifications to perform the Work.  
Such evidence may include financial data, previous experience and references, 
present commitments, and proposed contractors and suppliers.  By submitting a 

050714 BCC Meeting

85



 
 4 

bid, the Bidder certifies that he has the proper license to do the work within and/or 
for the County of Watauga, including contractors and business license. 

 
 4. Examination of the Contract Documents and Project Sites: 
 

4.1. It is the responsibility of the Bidder to: 
 

1. Thoroughly examine the Contract Documents, 
 

2. Visit the sites and become familiar with the existing conditions and 
the scope of the project work; verify quantities and become 
familiar with the surrounding conditions that may affect the cost, 
progress, performance or furnishing of the work, 

 
3. Consider all federal, state and/or local laws and regulations that 

may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the 
Work, 

 
4. Study and carefully correlate the Bidders observations with the 

Contract Documents, and 
 

5. Notify the Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies found 
in the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2. The submission of a bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the 

Bidder that the Bidder has complied with every requirement of this section, that 
without exception, the bid is premised upon performance and furnishing the work 
required by the Contract Documents, using the products, means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and/or procedures contained therein, and that the Contract 
Documents are sufficient in scope and detail and convey understanding of all 
specific products, materials or methods are specified, it is done to establish a 
standard of quality, function, dimension or appearance, and is not to restrict 
competition.  Other products, materials and methods may be used, if approved in 
advance by the County. 

 
5. Bid Form: 
 

5.1. The Bid Form is included in the Bidding Documents. 
 

5.2. All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed, either in ink or typewritten. 
 

5.3. Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the President or 
Vice-President, or other corporate officer, when proper authorization to sign is 
attached to the bid. 

050714 BCC Meeting

86



 
 5 

 
5.4. Bids by a partnership must be signed by all partners. 

 
5.5. Bids submitted on uncompleted bid forms or bids, which contain conditions, can 

be deemed to be unresponsive and may be rejected. 
 
6. Submission of Bids: 
 

6.1. Bids shall be submitted at or before the time indicated in the Advertisement and at 
the place therein stated.  Bids sent through the mail shall be enclosed in a second 
envelope, both of which shall have the notation "Bid Enclosed" on the exterior. 

 
6.2. All bids shall be enclosed in an opaque envelope, on the exterior of which, in 

addition to the notation "Bid Enclosed", is noted the name of the project, the time 
and place of the bid opening, the Bidder’s name, license number (if applicable), 
classification and expiration date. 

 
7. Modifications and Withdrawal of Bid: 
 

7.1. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document executed and 
delivered to the place where the bids are to be submitted at any time prior to the 
opening of bids.

 
8. Bid Opening: 
 

8.1. All Bids will be opened and, unless obviously non-responsive or otherwise 
irregular, read publicly aloud.  All bids are then available for inspection by the 
public and the other Bidders. 

 
9. Bids Acceptance and Bonds: 
 

9.1 All bids will remain subject to acceptance for 7 days after bid opening. 
 

9.2 Bonds.  Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the 
amount of 5% of the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a 
guarantee that the bidder will honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same 
should a contract be offered, based upon his bid and the contract documents, and 
which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10) days of the offer.   

 
 
 
10. Award of the Contract: 
 

10.1. The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any and all 

050714 BCC Meeting

87



 
 6 

informalities, not involving price, time or changes in the work, and to negotiate 
contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all non-
conforming, non-responsive, unbalanced or conditioned bids.  Also, the County 
reserves the right to reject in whole or in part the bid of any Bidder if the County 
when, in the County's sole opinion, believes that it would not be in the best 
interest of the project or the County to make an award either in whole or in part to 
that Bidder, whether because the bid is not responsive, the Bidder is not qualified, 
of doubtful financial ability, has a history of poor performance and/or difficulty 
with previous County work, or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria 
established by the County. 

 
10.2. In evaluating bids, the County will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, 

whether or not the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such 
alternates, unit prices and other data, as may be requested in the bid form or prior 
to the Notice of Award. 

 
10.3. The County recognizes that award of the Contract is dependant on the availability 

of funding and, therefore, the County makes no guarantees as to an award of a 
contract, to any Bidder.  If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the 
lowest Bidder whose evaluation by the County indicates to the County that the 
award will be in the best interest of the County. 

 
11. Signing of the Agreement: 
 

11.1. When the County submits to the Successful Bidder the "Notice of Award" and 
Agreement for execution, it will be in the number of copies necessary, all of 
which shall be signed and shall constitute an original Agreement.  Within five 
days thereafter, the Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver all copies of the 
Agreement to the County, accompanied by a certificate of insurance.  The County, 
within three days thereafter, shall return to the Successful Bidder a fully executed 
copy of the agreement. 

 
12. Notice of Award: 
 

12.1. The County may give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award at any time within 
the (10) days from the date of opening of bids.  The Successful Bidder shall begin 
the Work no less than ten (10) days from the receipt of the Notice of Award. 

 
 
 
13. Indemnity 
 

16.1 The contractor will indemnify and save harmless the County, its officers, agents, 
servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal 

050714 BCC Meeting

88



 
 7 

proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the 
extent resulting from a willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, its 
officers, agents, servants, and employees in the performance of this Contract; 
provided, however, that the Contractor shall not be liable for any suits, actions, 
legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys' fees 
arising out of the award of this Contract or a willful or negligent act or omission 
of the County, its officers, agents, servants and employees. 

 
17. Insurance 
 

17.1 The Contractor shall at all times during the Contract maintain in full force and 
effect Employer's Liability, Workmen's Compensation, Public Liability and 
Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage for the 
provisions of Indemnity.  All insurance shall be by insurers and for policy limits 
acceptable to the County and before commencement of work hereunder the
Contractor agrees to furnish the County certificates of insurance or other evidence 
satisfactory to the County to the effect that such insurance has been procured and 
is in force.  

050714 BCC Meeting

89



 
 8 

 
 
 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 SPECIFICATIONS AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 PARKING LOT SEALCOAT & PAVEMENT MARKING  
 
 SECTION C 
 
1. Scope of the Work: 
 

The work described in these specifications consists of furnishing all labor, materials, tools, 
equipment and services and performing all work required to (1) apply a sealcoat to public 
parking lots and (2) to apply markings for parking spaces on the public parking lots. 
 

2. Specifications: 
 

2.1 Preparation.  Paved surfaces on which the emulsified asphalt sealcoat is to be 
placed shall be swept and/or blown clean and dry, and be free of loose foreign 
materials before placing the seal coat.  Grease, oil and gas spots and stains shall be 
pre-treated. 

 
2.2. Sealmaster, Liquid Road or Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc., Guardtop are the only 

seal coatings approved for the work in this contract.  Bidders may bid one or both, 
Liquid Road or Guardtop on the Bid Form in Section D.  Sealcoat product shall be 
approved by the Town of Boone.   
 

2.3. Placing the sealcoat. Mixing and spreading equipment shall conform to 
manufacturer’s requirements.  All work shall be performed only when the surface 
and ambient air temperatures are at least 50 degrees F and rising and no rain is 
anticipated.  Ideally, the surface temperature should not drop below 50 degrees in 
a 24-hour period following application. The mix shall be spread in a manner to fill 
cracks and achieve a uniform skid-resistant surface.  Sealcoat shall be applied in 
two coats. 
 

2.4. Equipment.  A mixing machine equipped with a fines feeder, mixer, water 
pressure system and fog type sprayer and the ability to control the application rate 
is recommended. The sealcoat application shall be applied by either pressurized 
spray application equipment or self-propelled squeegee equipment.  Pressurized 
spray equipment shall be capable of spraying pavement sealer with sand (or other 
mineral aggregate) added.  Equipment shall have continuous agitation or mixing 
capabilities to maintain a homogeneous consistency throughout the application 
process.   

050714 BCC Meeting

90



 
 9 

 
2.5. Pavement Markings.  Public parking lots will be marked to maximize the number 

of spaces for automobile parking.  Parking stalls will be marked for stall widths of 
9 feet and stall lengths of 19 feet.  Handicapped parking shall be marked.  The 
minimum number of handicap parking spaces is 1 space for a lot serving up to 25 
cars; 2 spaces for a lot serving 26 –50 cars. 
 
2.5.1. Marking Materials.  Duron DU9948500, DU1LZM100, DU1YZ100 or 

equivalent, applied per manufacturer’s instructions. 
 
 
3. Method of Measurement 
 

3.1 Upon completion and acceptance of work performed in accordance with 
the specifications, and upon presentation of invoices showing quantity of 
emulsified asphalt sealcoat applied, payment shall become due and 
payable Payment shall constitute full compensation for furnishing, 
transporting, and placing the emulsified asphalt sealcoat and pavement 
markings for parking spaces and for all labor, tools, equipment and 
incidentals necessary to complete the work in full accordance with the 
specifications.  

050714 BCC Meeting

91



 
 10 

 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
  Proposal for Parking Lots Sealcoat and Pavement Marking Project 
 
 SECTION D 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Name of Bidder 
 
In compliance with your legal Notice to Bidders for the County of Watauga 2014 Paving Project, 

the undersigned bidder, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of ________, or a partnership of __________________________    , or an individual 
doing business as   _______________________________, of the City of, State of      
___________, having examined the specifications and contract forms thereto attached, 
and being fully advised as to the extent and character of the work to be performed, and 
the equipment to be furnished, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, tools, material, plant 
and equipment necessary for the Project. 

 
The undersigned further proposes to perform all work and furnish all equipment in accordance 

with the specifications and contract stipulations thereof, within the time limit specified, 
for the price so stated below. 

 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA  

Proposal for Parking Lot Sealcoat and Pavement Marking Projects 
 
 
Location 

 
Area 

(S.Y.) 

 
No. Parking Spaces 

 
Gallons of 
Sealant 

 
No. of 
Coats 

$Amount 
Liquid 
Road 

$Amount 
Guardtop 

Agricultural 
Services 
Center 

1,100   17 Regular 
  2   H/C 
  4   Arrows 

    

Law  
Enforcement  
Center 

2,700  41 Regular Spaces 
 
 

    

Library 3,941 101 Regular Spaces 
    5  H/C Spaces 
 60 spaces are 
numbered or have text 

    

Water Street 
Parking Lot 
 

1,100   31 Regular Spaces 
    1 H/C Space 

    

050714 BCC Meeting

92



 
 11 

Ginn Parking 
Lot 
 

1,400   47 Regular Spaces 
    5 Arrows 

    

Western 
Watauga 
Community 
Ctr. 
 

1,900   31 Regular Spaces 
    3 H/C Spaces 
    1 Do Not Park Zone 

    

Total 12,141 279 No. spaces ____ 
Gallons 
of 
Sealant 

   

   
 
 

TOTAL BID 
  

TOTAL BID PRICE FOR SEALCOATING ( LIQUID ROAD) AND PAVEMENT MARKING 
 
__________                                  DOLLARS AND _____                   CENTS 
 
 
TOTAL BID PRICE FOR SEALCOATING (GUARDTOP) AND PAVEMENT MARKING 
 
__________________________  DOLLARS AND ______________ CENTS 
 
 
BIDDER understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any 

informality in bidding. 
 
The bidder agrees that his bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of FIFTEEN 

(15) days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. 
 
Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this bid, Bidder will execute the formal contract 

attached within FIVE (5) days and deliver insurance coverage as required by the 
Instructions to Bidders. 

 
 
 

BY:                                                                          Contractor's 
Name 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

93



 
 12 

                                                                                     
 

                                                                                  
 

                                                                                
 
 
Seal--if bid is by a corporation.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

94



 
 13 

 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 FOR PAVING PROJECTS 
 
 SECTION E 
 

   This AGREEMENT made this _______ day of __________, 20__ by and 
between the County of Watauga, hereinafter referred to as the "County," 
and___________________________________________ hereinafter referred to as the 
"Contractor," witnesses that the County and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual 
covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows: 

 
1. Work: 
 

1.1. The work is generally described as application of an emulsified asphalt sealcoat to 
public parking lots and marking of parking lot pavement for automobile parking.  
The Contractor shall furnish all labor and materials necessary to facilitate a 
finished product as described in the Contract documents.  The Contractor shall 
also provide a one-year warranty on all materials and workmanship, which shall 
commence upon final acceptance of the work by the County. 

 
 2. Engineer: 
 

2.1. The Project has been initiated by the Maintenance Director who is hereinafter 
referred to as the "Engineer," and who is to act as the County's representative, 
assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to 
the Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
 3. Contract Time: 
 

3.1. The work will be substantially completed within 20 calendar days from the date 
when the Contract Time commences. 

 
 4. Contract Price: 
 

4.1. Contractor's price includes all work incidental to or normally associated with the 
type of work in this contract. 

  
4.2. The County shall pay the Contractor for completion of the work in accordance 

with the Contract Documents in current funds, as follows: 
 

  $     _____________________________  for sealcoating and pavement marking. 

050714 BCC Meeting

95



 
 14 

 
 5. Payment Procedures: 
 

5.1. The Contractor shall submit Applications for payment at the completion of the 
work. Applications will be processed by the Engineer, and upon determining the 
Contractor's satisfactory completion of the work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the County will make payment within thirty (30) days from the 
request for payment. 

 
 
 6. Contractor's Representations: 
 

6.1. In order to induce the County to enter into this agreement, the Contractor makes 
the following representations: 

 
6.1.1. The Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent 

of the work, the Contract Documents, site locality, and all local 
conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may 
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work. 

 
  6.1.2. The Contractor has given the Engineer written notice of all 

conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he has discovered in the 
Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by the 
Engineer is acceptable by the Contractor. 

 
 7. Contract Documents: 
 

7.1. The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between the 
County and the Contractor concerning the Work, consist of the following: 

 
1. Cover Sheet, 
2. Section A, Advertisement for Bids, 
3. Section B, Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, 
4. Section C, Specifications and Project Description, 
5. Section D, Proposal, 
6. Section E, Agreement 

 
7.2. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in the Article 7.1.  The 

Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as 
provided for through a fully executed change order as agreed to by both parties of 
this Agreement. 

 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

96



 
 15 

8. Miscellaneous: 
 

8.1. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract 
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of 
the party sought to be bound; and specifically, but without limitation, monies that 
may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

 
8.2. The County and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns 

and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns 
and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations 
contained in the Contract Documents. 

 
8.3.   E-verify.  The Contractor shall ensure its compliance with Title IV, Subtitle A, of the 

Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996, Pub. L. 104-
208, 110 Stat. 3009 and Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes.  Contractor shall provide all documentation which may be requested by the 
County, including but not limited to completion of Form I-9 for Employment 
Eligibility Verification, affidavits of compliance with this act, and such other 
documentation as the County may request from time to time.  The Contractor shall 
not knowingly hire for employment, employ, or continue to employ an unauthorized 
alien. 

 
 

9. Other Considerations: 
 
 

9.1. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Contractor have signed this 
AGREEMENT in duplicate.  One counterpart each has been delivered to the 
County and the Contractor. 

 
  9.2. This AGREEMENT will be effective upon its signing of each party thereto and 

will be binding until the acceptance by the County of all the work therein. 

050714 BCC Meeting

97



 
 16 

 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA            CONTRACTOR 

 
By: __________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
(SEAL)      (SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: ______________________________ Attest: ______________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
Address for giving Notices:    Address for giving Notices: 
 
County of Watauga    ____________________________________ 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607                                
 

 
____________________________________ 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

 County Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Director        

 

050714 BCC Meeting

98



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

B.  Bid Award Request for Appalachian Enterprise Center Renovation Project 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh will present the bids received for the Appalachian Enterprise Center 
renovation.  The renovations are necessary for the High Country Workforce Development Board    
to occupy the space.  The Board approved a lease with the High Country Workforce 
Development Board in which the lease payments will be used to pay for the renovations. 
 
Four (4) bids were received in which Kanipe Construction was the lowest responsive bidder in 
the amount of $32,900.  The $32,900 includes Alternate Two (commercial doors and hardware) 
in the amount of $6,200.  While the bid is somewhat higher than originally anticipated, the 
increase is due to overall maintenance and repair issues of the building being addressed at the 
time of the renovation.  These maintenance and repair issues would have been handled over 
several years but was more efficient and economical to do now during the renovation process.          
 
Staff recommends the Board award the bid to Kanipe Construction for renovations at the 
Appalachian Enterprise Center in the amount of $32,900, which includes the Base Bid of 
$26,700 and Alternate Two of $6,200 with funds to come from the administrative contingency 
funds. 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

99



 

 
      W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
         MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
        969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                             Fax    (828) 264-1473 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Appalachian Enterprise Center Bid Award 
 
DATE:  April 29, 2014 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
High Country Workforce Development has requested renovations to the space they plan 
to occupy in the Appalachian Enterprise Center in June 2014.  The renovations are 
designed to make their operations more efficient and provide a safer environment for 
their staff and visitors.   
 
On April 29th the Maintenance Department opened bids submitted by four contractors in 
response to a Bid Advertisement posted in the Watauga Democrat and on the County 
website. 
 

Contractor License # Check or Bid 
Bond 

Base Bid Alternate 1 Alternate 2 Total 

Greene Construction 
Company 
Boone, NC 

1610 Check $46,431 
 
 
 

$6,836 $3,959 $57,226 

Houck Contracting, 
LLC 
Hickory, NC 

49615 Bid Bond $40,676 $8,775 $6,550 $56,001 

Kanipe Construction, 
LLC 
Vilas, NC 

72149 Bid Bond $26,700 $4,900 $6,200 $37,800 

Lawrence Construction 
Boone, NC 

 Check $29,931 $6,658 $8,767 $45,356 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the low bidder, Kanipe Construction for the Base Bid of $26,700 and 
Alternate Two (Commercial Doors & Hardware) $ 6,200 for a total bid price of $32,900.    
Mr. Kanipe has indicated that he would like to get started as soon as possible in order to 
meet the deadline for completing the project.         
 

050714 BCC Meeting

100



 
 1 

    

   
 
 

SPECIFICATIONS AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION 
PROJECT 

 
 
 
 Contents 
 
Section 
 
   A  Notice to Contractors (Advertisement) 
   B  Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions 
   C  Specifications and Project Description 
   D  Bid Form 
   E  Contract Form 

050714 BCC Meeting

101



 
 2 

 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 
 APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT 
 

SECTION A 
  
 
 

Advertisement for Bids 
 
Watauga County Building Maintenance is seeking bids from persons or firms interested in 
submitting bids for minor interior renovations at the Appalachian Enterprise Center, 130 Poplar 
Grove Road Connector, Boone, NC 28607.  Please contact Robert Marsh, Watauga County 
Maintenance Director, for plans and specifications by telephone (828)264-1430 or email 
robert.marsh@watgov.org. 
 
There will be a mandatory pre-bid conference Wednesday, April 16, 2014 at 1:00 p.m. at 
the Appalachian Enterprise Center, 130 Poplar Grove Road Connector, Boone, NC.   
 
Bids shall be delivered to Watauga County Maintenance, 969 West King Street, Boone, NC 
28607.  Bids will be accepted until 2:00 pm Tuesday, April 29, 2014.  Each bid must be 
accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the amount of 5% of  
the total amount of the bid. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

102

mailto:robert.marsh@watgov.org


 
 3 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT 
 
 SECTION B 
 
 1. Defined Terms: 
 

1.1 The term "County" means the Owner, the County of Watauga. 
 

1.2 The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to the County, as 
distinct from a sub bidder who submits a bid to a Bidder.   

 
1.3 The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, responsible and 

responsive Bidder to whom the County shall make an award of the Contract. 
 

1.4 The term "Bidding Documents" includes the Advertisement, these Instructions, 
the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents. 

 
1.5 The term "Engineer" means the Maintenance Director or the Director’s designee 

assigned to this project as the Contract Administrator. 
 
 2. Bidding Documents: 
 

2.1 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be viewed at the Maintenance 
Department. 

 
2.2 Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in the preparations of bids.  

The County assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting 
from the use of incomplete sets of the Bidding Documents. 

 
2.3 The County, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above 

terms, does so only to obtain bids on the Work, and does not confer a license or 
grant for any other use. 

 
 3. Qualifications of Bidders: 
 

3.1 Each Bidder must be prepared to submit upon request such written evidence as 
may be requested to demonstrate the Bidders qualifications to perform the Work.  
Such evidence may include financial data, previous experience and references, 
present commitments, and proposed contractors and suppliers.  By submitting a  

            bid, the Bidder certifies that he has the proper license to do the work within and/or 
for the County of Watauga, including contractors and business license. 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

103



 
 4 

 4. Examination of the Contract Documents and Project Sites: 
 

4.1 It is the responsibility of the Bidder to: 
 

1. Thoroughly examine the Contract Documents, 
 

2. Visit the sites and become familiar with the existing conditions and 
the scope of the project work; verify quantities and become 
familiar with the surrounding conditions that may affect the cost, 
progress, performance or furnishing of the work, 

 
3. Consider all federal, state and/or local laws and regulations that 

may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the 
Work, 

 
4. Study and carefully correlate the Bidders observations with the 

Contract Documents, and 
 

5. Notify the Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies found 
in the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2 The submission of a bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by the 

Bidder that the Bidder has complied with every requirement of this section, that 
without exception, the bid is premised upon performance and furnishing the work 
required by the Contract Documents, using the products, means, methods, 
techniques, sequences and/or procedures contained therein, and that the Contract 
Documents are sufficient in scope and detail and convey understanding of all 
specific products, materials or methods are specified, it is done to establish a 
standard of quality, function, dimension or appearance, and is not to restrict 
competition.  Other products, materials and methods may be used, if approved in 
advance by the County. 

 
5. Bid Form: 
 

5.1 The Bid Form is included in the Bidding Documents. 
 

5.2 All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed, either in ink or typewritten. 
 

5.3 Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the President or 
Vice-President, or other corporate officer, when proper authorization to sign is 
attached to the bid. 

 
5.4 Bids by a partnership must be signed by all partners. 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

104



 
 5 

5.5 Bids submitted on uncompleted bid forms or bids, which contain conditions, can 
be deemed to be unresponsive and may be rejected. 

 
6. Submission of Bids: 
 

6.1 Bids shall be submitted at or before the time indicated in the Advertisement and at 
the place therein stated.  Bids sent through the mail shall be enclosed in a second 
envelope, both of which shall have the notation "Bid Enclosed" on the exterior. 

 
6.2 All bids shall be enclosed in an opaque envelope, on the exterior of which, in 

addition to the notation "Bid Enclosed", is noted the name of the project, the time 
and place of the bid opening, the Bidder’s name, license number (if applicable), 
classification and expiration date. 

 
7. Modifications and Withdrawal of Bid: 
 

7.1 Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document executed and 
delivered to the place where the bids are to be submitted at any time prior to the 
opening of bids.

 
8. Bid Opening: 
 

8.1 All Bids will be opened and, unless obviously non-responsive or otherwise 
irregular, read publicly aloud.  All bids are then available for inspection by the 
public and the other Bidders. 

 
9. Bids Acceptance and Bid Bonds: 
 

9.1 All bids will remain subject to acceptance for forty-five (45) days after bid 
opening. 
 

9.2 Bonds.  Each bid must be accompanied by a certified check or Bid Bond in the 
amount of 5% of the total amount of the bid. The certified check or Bid Bond is a 
guarantee that the bidder will honor his bid and he agrees to forfeit the same 
should a contract be offered, based upon his bid and the contract documents, and 
which the bidder fails to execute within ten (10) days of the offer.   

 
10. Award of the Contract: 
 

10.1 The County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive any and all 
informalities, not involving price, time or changes in the work, and to negotiate 
contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all non-
conforming, non-responsive, unbalanced or conditioned bids.  Also, the County 
reserves the right to reject in whole or in part the bid of any Bidder if the County 

050714 BCC Meeting

105



 
 6 

when, in the County's sole opinion, believes that it would not be in the best 
interest of the project or the County to make an award either in whole or in part to 
that Bidder, whether because the bid is not responsive, the Bidder is not qualified, 
of doubtful financial ability, has a history of poor performance and/or difficulty 
with previous County work, or fails to meet any other pertinent standard or criteria 
established by the County. 

 
10.2 In evaluating bids, the County will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, 

whether or not the bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such 
alternates, unit prices and other data, as may be requested in the bid form or prior 
to the Notice of Award. 

 
10.3 The County recognizes that award of the Contract is dependent on the availability 

of funding and, therefore, the County makes no guarantees as to an award of a 
contract, to any Bidder.  If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the 
lowest Bidder whose evaluation by the County indicates to the County that the 
award will be in the best interest of the County. 

 
11. Signing of the Agreement: 
 

11.1 When the County submits to the Successful Bidder the "Notice of Award" and 
Agreement for execution, it will be in the number of copies necessary, all of 
which shall be signed and shall constitute an original Agreement.  Within ten (10) 
days thereafter, the Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver all copies of the 
Agreement to the County, accompanied by a Certificate of Insurance.   

 
12. Notice of Award: 
 

12.1 The County may give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award at any time within 
the ten (10) days from the date of opening of bids.  The Successful Bidder shall 
begin the Work no less than thirty (30) days from the receipt of the Notice of 
Award. 

 
13. Indemnity 
 

13.1 The contractor will indemnify and save harmless the County, its officers, agents, 
servants, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal 
proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys' fees to the 
extent resulting from a willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, its 
officers, agents, servants, and employees in the performance of this Contract; 
provided, however, that the Contractor shall not be liable for any suits, actions, 
legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses and attorneys' fees 
arising out of the award of this Contract or a willful or negligent act or omission 
of the County, its officers, agents, servants and employees. 

050714 BCC Meeting

106



 
 7 

 
1.4 Insurance and Bonds 
 

14.1 The Contractor shall at all times during the Contract maintain in full force and 
effect Employer's Liability, Workmen's Compensation, Public Liability and 
Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage for the 
provisions of Indemnity.  All insurance shall be by insurers and for policy limits 
acceptable to the County and before commencement of work here under the
Contractor agrees to furnish the County certificates of insurance or other evidence 
satisfactory to the County to the effect that such insurance has been procured and 
is in force.  
 

  

050714 BCC Meeting

107



 
 8 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 

 SPECIFICATIONS AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT  

 SECTION C 
 
1. General Notes: 
 

 1.1  Completion must be by June 23, 2014. 
 
 1.2 Work may proceed 24/7 after the Contractor receives Notice to Proceed and 

issuance of a Town of Boone Building Permit. 
 
 1.3 Contractor is responsible for obtaining a Building Permit from the Town of Boone 

prior to the commencement of construction. 
 
 1.4 All bid forms must be completed and submitted with bid. 
 

2. Scope: 
   
 2.1  Electrical 

 
1) Add switch at back office. 
2) Switch Resource Office lights to Lobby lighting circuit. 
3) Add (8) 20 amp 125 V duplex receptacles in Resource Office – (2) circuits. 
4) Demo electrical in wall for future glass wall and partition wall in future Resource 

Office. 
5) Relocate (2) thermostats in Resource Office. 
6) Replace (11) 8’ florescent fixtures with (22) 4 lamp T8 trouffers w/lamps. 

  
 2.2  General Construction 
 

1) Install 18” x 30” Tempered glass in (9) existing doors. 
2) Demolish GWB wall for future glass wall at Resource Office. 
3) Demolish GWB wall in future Resource Office. 
4) Install GWB wrapped bulkhead at demolished walls and brace to bar joist above 

ceiling. 
5) Install glass partition with doors. 
6) Install new carpet in Resource Office.  (Cambridge Commercial – RLY Relay 

Stepping Stone AB 213962A06). 
7) Replace 254 s.f. ceiling tiles in hallway. (Match existing tile used in the lower 

ceiling @ hallway.) 
8) Patch and paint walls -10,550 s.f. of wall space in Resource Office, (10) Offices, 

Hallway, Training Room. 

050714 BCC Meeting

108



 
 9 

ALTERNATE 1 
 
Add 1.5 ton mini-split system in server room.  Plumb condensate line and install roof curb as 
required for a complete and working system.  Penetration at roof and flashing must be made by a 
Firestone Roofing Product certified contractor. 
 
ALTERNATE 2 
 
Replace (9) doors with 20” x 60” view glass/wood door and oak jambs. 

 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

109



 
 10 

 
 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

BID FORM 
  APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT 
 
 SECTION D 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 Name of Bidder 
 
In compliance with your legal Notice to Bidders for the Appalachian Enterprise Center 

Renovation Project, the undersigned bidder, a corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of ________, or a partnership of __________________________    , 
or an individual doing business as   _______________________________, of the City of, 
State of      ___________, having examined the specifications and contract forms thereto 
attached, and being fully advised as to the extent and character of the work to be 
performed, and the equipment to be furnished, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, tools, 
material, plant and equipment necessary for the Project. 

 
The undersigned further proposes to perform all work and furnish all equipment in accordance 

with the specifications and contract stipulations thereof, within the time limit specified, 
for the price so stated below. 

 
BASE BID 

  
TOTAL BID PRICE FOR APPALACHIAN ENTRPRISE CENTER 

RENOVATION PROJECT 
 
__________                                  DOLLARS AND _____                   CENTS 
 
 
 
ALTERNATE 1 – ADD 1.5 TON MINISPLIT SYSTEM IN SERVER ROOM 
 
ADD _______________________________ DOLLARS AND _______________ CENTS 
 
 
 

ALTERNATE 2 – REPLACE (9) DOORS WITH 20” X 60” VIEW 
GLASS/WOOD DOOR AND KD FRAME 

 
ADD _______________________________ DOLLARS AND _______________ CENTS 

050714 BCC Meeting

110



 
 11 

 
 
 
BIDDER understands that the County reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any 

informality in bidding. 
 
The bidder agrees that his bid shall be good and may not be withdrawn for a period of FORTY-

FIVE (45) days after the scheduled closing time for receiving bids. 
 
Upon receipt of written notice of acceptance of this bid, Bidder will execute the formal contract 

attached within TEN (10) days and deliver insurance coverage as required by the 
Instructions to Bidders. 

 
 
 

BY:                                                                          Contractor's 
Name 

 
                                                                                     

 
                                                                                  

 
                                                                                

 
 
Seal--if bid is by a corporation.  
 

050714 BCC Meeting

111



 
 12 

 COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
  CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 APPALACHIAN ENTERPRISE CENTER RENOVATION PROJECT 
 
 SECTION E 
 

   This AGREEMENT made this _______ day of __________, 20__ by and 
between the County of Watauga, hereinafter referred to as the "County," 
and___________________________________________ hereinafter referred to as the 
"Contractor," witnesses that the County and the Contractor, in consideration of the mutual 
covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows: 

 
1. Work: 
 

1.1. The work is generally described as minor renovations.  The Contractor shall 
furnish all labor and materials necessary to facilitate a finished product as 
described in the Contract documents.  The Contractor shall also provide a one-
year warranty on all materials and workmanship, which shall commence upon 
final acceptance of the work by the County. 

 
 2. Engineer: 
 

2.1. The Project has been initiated by the Maintenance Director who is hereinafter 
referred to as the "Engineer," and who is to act as the County's representative, 
assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to 
the Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
 3. Contract Time: 
 

3.1. The work will be completed by June 23, 2014. 
 
 4. Contract Price: 
 

4.1. Contractor's price includes all work incidental to or normally associated with the 
type of work in this contract. 

  
4.2. The County shall pay the Contractor for completion of the work in accordance 

with the Contract Documents in current funds, as follows: 
 

  $     _____________________ for the renovations described in Base Bid. 
 
  $     _____________________ for Alternate 1. 

050714 BCC Meeting

112



 
 13 

 
  $     _____________________ for Alternate 2. 
 
 
 5. Payment Procedures: 
 

5.1. The Contractor may submit Applications for Payments at thirty (30) day intervals 
and a final payment upon the completion of the work. Applications will be 
processed by the Engineer, and upon determining the Contractor's satisfactory 
completion of the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the County 
will make payment within thirty (30) days from the request for payment. 

 
 6. Contractor's Representations: 
 

6.1. In order to induce the County to enter into this agreement, the Contractor makes 
the following representations: 

 
6.1.1. The Contractor has familiarized himself with the nature and extent 

of the work, the Contract Documents, site locality, and all local 
conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may 
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work. 

 
  6.1.2. The Contractor has given the Engineer written notice of all 

conflicts, errors or discrepancies that he has discovered in the 
Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by the 
Engineer is acceptable by the Contractor. 

 
 7. Contract Documents: 
 

7.1. The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between the 
County and the Contractor concerning the Work, consist of the following: 

 
1. Cover Sheet, 
2. Section A, Advertisement for Bids, 
3. Section B, Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, 
4. Section C, Specifications and Project Description, 
5. Section D, Proposal, 
6. Section E, Agreement 

 
7.2. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed in the Article 7.1.  The 

Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as 
provided for through a fully executed change order as agreed to by both parties of 
this Agreement. 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

113



 
 14 

 8. Miscellaneous: 
 

8.1. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract 
Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of 
the party sought to be bound; and specifically, but without limitation, monies that 
may become due and monies that are due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

 
8.2. The County and the Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns 

and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns 
and legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations 
contained in the Contract Documents. 
 

9. Other Considerations: 
 

9.1. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and the Contractor have signed this 
AGREEMENT in duplicate.  One counterpart each has been delivered to the 
County and the Contractor. 

 
  9.2. This AGREEMENT will be effective upon its signing of each party thereto and 

will be binding until the acceptance by the County of all the work therein. 

050714 BCC Meeting

114



 
 15 

 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA            CONTRACTOR 

 
By: __________________________________ By:_________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
(SEAL)      (SEAL) 
 
 
Attest: ______________________________ Attest: ______________________________ 
 
Date: _______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
Address for giving Notices:    Address for giving Notices: 
 
County of Watauga    ____________________________________ 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607                                
 

 
____________________________________ 

 
 
 
 

 
 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Director        
 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

115



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

116



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
C.  Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural Services 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the Boards last meeting, approval was granted to purchase 13 acres off US Highway 321 for 
the new ambulance station.  During the due diligence period for the purchase of the property, the 
County conducted interviews for potential architects for the project.  Staff sent out an RFQ for 
architects in which two (2) proposals were received.  The interview panel consisted of 
Commissioner Kennedy, the County Manager, and Robert Marsh.  Upon completion of the 
interviews, the committee was in agreement to recommend Innovative Designs from Raleigh, 
NC.  The recommendation was based on Innovative Designs qualifications and past experience 
with the County. 
 
Staff would recommend the Board employ Innovative Designs as the architects for the new 
medic base and authorize staff to negotiate a contract to be approved by the Board at a future 
meeting.   
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

117



 

 
      W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
         MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
        969 West King St., Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                             Fax    (828) 264-1473 
 
 

 
 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Medic Base #3 Recommendation for Architectural Design Services 
 
DATE:  April 29, 2014 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board of County Commissioners directed County staff to form a search committee 
and begin a qualification based search for design services for the proposed Medic Base 
#3 at the February 21st Board Meeting.  The Board was represented by Billy Kennedy, 
County Commissioner and included Deron Geouque, County Manager and Robert Marsh, 
County Maintenance Director. 
 
A notice for design services was sent to local architects and posted on the County 
website.  Innovative Designs, Raleigh, NC and WBS, Hillsville, VA responded with 
letters of interest.  The committee interviewed both firms.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Search Committee recommends the selection of Innovative Designs for consideration 
by the Board as designer for the new Medic Base.  This recommendation is based on the 
qualifications they presented which detailed their experience and qualifications as an 
architectural design firm.  Innovative Design has successfully completed other 
architectural design work for the County. 
 
Unfortunately, the Committee is unable to present a contract for design service at this 
time due to the legal requirement of the qualification based selection process.  If the 
Board is in agreement with the selection, then a fee and contract can be negotiated with 
the firm.   The Committee will return with a contract stating the scope of architectural 
services and a fee for Board approval.    
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

118



1 
 

Watauga County, North Carolina 
Request for Statements of Qualifications 

Architectural Services 
Medic Base 3 

 
Watauga County, North Carolina is seeking Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) from well-qualified 
architectural firms to provide services associated with a new Medic Base.  Submittals will be received 
until 2:00 p.m.  on Thursday, March 27, 2014 at the Watauga County Building Maintenance Office, 969 
West King Street, Boone, NC.  Submittals, one original and three copies, must be submitted in a sealed 
envelope/box labeled “Architectural Services – Medic Base 3”, along with the submitter’s name and 
address clearly indicated on the envelope/box.  Instructions for preparing the Statement of 
Qualifications are provided herein. 
 
All questions concerning the Request shall be submitted in writing to Robert Marsh at 
robert.marsh@watgov.org no later than March 20, 2014.  A copy of the Request for Statements of 
Qualifications is available on the County’s website, wataugacounty.org. 
 
BACKGROUND 

Watauga County identified a need to add an Ambulance Base in the western area of Watauga County for 
the purpose of improving ambulance response time for the area served.  To achieve this goal, the Board 
of County Commissioners selected a site near the intersection of Highways 321/421, PIN 
#1982231215000, for the construction of a two bay ambulance base. 

Preliminary programming by staff has determined that the base needs to include the following 
elements:  Ambulance bay 1,504sf; crew quarters 1,600sf; radiant heated floors throughout with forced 
air heat pump in crew quarters; domestic water conditioning for ph, sulphur and hardness; sloped 
standing seam metal roof; snow guard ice detention system; brick exterior; fire sprinkler system with 
storage tank; backup power generator.  The County has estimated expenses for this project to be 
$512,560 for construction and design fees.     

In February 2014 the County hired Valor Engineering, PLLC to provide a Site Assessment and Civil 
Engineering Report as part of the due diligence work associated with the land purchase.  A complete Soil 
and Erosion Control Plan with topography and proposed site improvements are part of the services that 
will be provided by Valor Engineering. The Architect shall review the Civil Engineering Report and may 
use this work in the preparation of the drawings.  Completion date for the Site Assessment is scheduled 
for April 15, 2014.  Questions concerning the scope of the Civil Engineer’s report should be directed to 
Jason Gaston, President, Valor Engineering (828)262-9807 or by email jason@valorengineering.com. 

The County requires all plans complete by July 1, 2014 and a Bid Advertisement ready for publishing at 
that time.   

 

050714 BCC Meeting

119

mailto:robert.marsh@watgov.org


2 
 

 

SCOPE 

The Architect shall provide complete design services including: 

• Programming with County and Medic Staff. 
• Schematic Design and Probable Cost Estimate. 
•  Schematic Presentation to the Board of County Commissioners. 
• Working Drawings. 
• Bidding and evaluation of bids with presentation to the Commissioners. 
• Project Management (bidding, review of submittals, preconstruction meeting, review of pay 

applications, review request for change orders, monthly inspections, review of test and 
balancing report and commissioning  of HVAC equipment,  hard copy and CD format as-built 
drawing, compile and submit three written copies of warranty and O&M Manuel and on CD 
format) .   

• Prepare contractor’s punch list. 
• Final Inspection and acceptance of work. 

 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
Firms desiring to submit a Statement of Qualifications must meet the following criteria: 

• Have at least five years’ experience with similar projects. 
• Have completed at least three similar size and complexity projects in the past five years. 
• Have a proven track record of delivering projects on time and at/or below budget. 
• Have experience designing LEED certified buildings. 
• Have all necessary licenses/certifications to conduct business in North Carolina or be capable of 

demonstrating the ability to secure them in a timely manner, and have experience working in 
the region. 

Statements of Qualifications must be submitted in three ring binders or spiral bound, and tabbed for 
each section outlined below.  The total length of the submittal, excluding any cover letter, table of 
contents, or appendices, should be no more than 30 pages.  Font size should be no smaller than Arial, 11 
point.  Please provide submittals in the sequence of the following major headings described below.  
Supplemental materials providing additional information may be included as appendices. 

Experience 

Please provide a detailed description of your firm’s experience for the past ten years.  If there are 
additional affiliated entities that are part of the team, please detail their experience as well.  Please 
include: 

• Firm name, address, telephone number, fax number, e-mail address, and contact person(s). 
• Year in which the firm was established and any former names under which the firm operated. 

050714 BCC Meeting

120



3 
 

• Names and office location of all personnel who will be assigned to this project.  Names of key 
personnel who would be available to work in this project. 

• Résumés of Project Manager and design team members for this project.  Professional 
affiliations and licenses of key personnel, including LEED certifications. 

• Understanding of the scope of work. 
• Approach to the design process. 
• Unique qualifications or work methodology. 
• Track record of bringing in projects on time and within budget. 
• Provide a description of the systems and methods employed by your firm to effectively manage 

the project including a discussion of goal setting, managing client expectations, 
communications, quality control, managing project schedule and costs within prescribed 
budgets, and change management. 

In addition to the overall experience description, please provide details on three similar size and 
complexity projects to include: 

• Owner’s name and address. 
• Owner’s contact person and telephone number. 
• Title of project. 
• Description of project. 
• Date of project initiation and date of completion. 
• Description of services provided. 
• Key building elements, i.e., HVAC systems and controls, stand-by power systems, conveyance 

systems, structural system, roofing system, exterior building materials, security systems, interior 
finishes, “green” elements, LEED classification if any, building class, etc. 

• Energy conservation considerations. 
• Interior and exterior photographs. 
• Final construction cost per square foot.  Please indicate the following cost components 

individually:  land, building shell, site work cost, up fit and soft costs. 

SELECTION PROCESS 

Maintaining the integrity of the RFQ process is of paramount importance for the County.  To this end, 
please do not contact any members of Watauga County or its staff regarding the subject matter of this 
RFQ until selection has been made, other than the County’s designated contact person identified in the 
introduction to this RFQ.  Representatives of Watauga County will read, review and evaluate the 
qualifications independently based on the evaluation criteria.  Watauga County reserves the right to 
conduct interviews with a shortlist of selected respondents. 

Reputation, Quality and Experience of the Firm 

• How substantial is the firm’s experience in designing projects of comparable size and 
complexity? 

050714 BCC Meeting

121



4 
 

• Does the firm have experience designing Medic Base buildings? 
• Did all references listed have a favorable experience with the firm?  Would they work with them 

again?  How comparable was their project? 
• Does the firm have all necessary licenses/certifications to conduct business in North Carolina or 

be capable of demonstrating the ability to secure them in a timely manner? 
• Does the firm have a proven track record of delivering projects on time and at/or below budget? 
• Did the firm demonstrate an understanding of the specific needs of Watauga County? 

Proposed Project Team 

• Does the proposed project staff appear to have the appropriate experience and capabilities to 
perform the specified project? 

• Does the firm’s organizational structure support the project team and project objectives?  What 
systems/processes does the firm employ to assure knowledge sharing so we get the benefit of 
the firm’s experience and not just the experience of the individuals assigned to the project? 

• What s the availability of key team members to participate in this project? 

Overall Approach and Methodology 

The SOQ needs to provide a clear and concise answer to the question – Why should Watauga County 
select your firm for this project? 

• What is the firm’s approach to managing the construction budget, regulatory process and public 
involvement process?  How has the firm done this in past projects? 

• Does the team’s project approach provide for effective project management?  What measures 
will be used to validate a successful project outcome? 

• Does the team’s project approach keep the best interest of the County in the forefront of the 
project? 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

122



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
D.  Contract Renewal Request for Parks and Recreation Weekend Janitorial Services 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Marsh will request the Board award the contract for parks and recreation weekend janitorial 
services to Estate Maintenance in the amount of $22,365.  Estate Maintenance was the only 
contractor to submit a proposal and currently provides most of the services requested.  The 
existing contract with Estate Maintenance is set to expire June 30, 2014.  Adequate funds have 
been proposed in the recommended Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the contract with Estate Maintenance in the amount of 
$22,365 for parks and recreation weekend janitorial services to be effective July 1, 2014.   
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

123



 

 
      W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 

         MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
        969 West King St.,  Boone, NC  28607  -  Phone (828) 264-1430 
                                                                             Fax    (828) 264-1473 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 
 
SUBJECT: Parks and Recreation Weekend Janitorial Contract 
 
DATE:  April 30, 2014 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Maintenance Department solicited bids for janitorial services on the County website 
April 16th to April 24th, 2014.  Estate Maintenance submitted a bid of $22,365.  This was 
the only bid received.  The contract term is five years for a stipulated sum with no annual 
increase. 
 
The scope of the contract includes a Saturday and Sunday morning cleaning of all of the 
County recreation facility restrooms and trash pickup at the ball fields, adjacent parking 
lots as well as the playgrounds, bike park, canoe access and Howard’s Knob Park.  The 
vendor supplies his own vehicle and cleaning supplies.   
 
Currently, Estate Maintenance has been providing most of the services within the scope 
of the contract on an annual basis.  The current contract expires June 30, 2014. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the County award the bid for weekend janitorial service to Estate 
Maintenance for $22,365.  Estate Maintenance has always provided very good service 
and they are extremely dependable and trustworthy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If approved, the cost for this service through FY14-15 will be included in the 
Maintenance Department Budget Request. 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

124



Request for Quotes 
Watauga County Maintenance 

Weekend Custodial Service 
 
Watauga County is requesting quotes from persons or firms interested in providing custodial services on 
weekends at County park facilities from approximately April 1st through October 31st.  Contract will 
begin July 1, 2014 and run through June 30, 2019.  Questions may be directed to Watauga County 
Maintenance at 828-264-1430 or email nona.lawrence@watgov.org. 
 
Contractors shall provide Certificates of Insurance to the County for workers’ compensation coverage 
and general liability insurance.   
 

Scope of Work 
 

Properties to be serviced each Saturday and Sunday from April 1st until October 31st. 
 
Howard’s Knob Park (Open at 8:30 a.m. and close at 7:30 p.m. May 1 through October 20) 
Ted Mackorell Soccer Complex 
Brookshire Park 
Rocky Knob Park 
Optimist Park 
Industrial Fields 
Complex (includes tennis courts) 
Tot Lot Playground 
Old Cove Creek Gym & Field 
Mountaineer Ruritan 
321 Canoe Access 
 
Clean restrooms – Sanitize fixtures, spot clean mirrors, restock paper supplies, sweep floors, 

empty trash receptacles and reline containers.   
 

Grounds – Pick up trash on grounds and empty trash barrels, reline containers.  Spot clean table 
tops and sweep pavilions if needed. 
 
 Contractor shall provide all cleaning supplies, equipment and vehicles.   The County shall provide 
all paper products, can liners and hand soap.  The County will also provide use of dumpsters for trash 
disposal.  All work must be complete by 10:00 a.m. 

 
Quotes will be accepted until 2:00 p.m., Thursday, April 24, 2014 at Watauga County Maintenance, 969 
West King Street, Boone, NC 28607. 

 
 
 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

125

mailto:nona.lawrence@watgov.org


050714 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

127



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

128



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

129



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

130



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
C. Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the unpaid real estate tax bills for Board consideration and 
advertisement.   
 
Board action is required to authorize Mr. Warren to advertise the unpaid real estate tax bills for 
2013.   
 

  

050714 BCC Meeting

131



 
WATAUGA COUNTY TAX ADMINISTRATION 
 

Courthouse, Suite 21 – 842 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8021 – FAX (828) 264-3230 

 
 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
TO:        Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:         Larry Warren, Tax Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2013 Unpaid Real Estate Tax-bills 
 
DATE:        04/30/2014 
 
 
The 2013 report of unpaid taxes, which represent liens on real property, needs to be presented to the Board of 
County Commissioners at the May 6th meeting. The current 2013 amount of outstanding taxes for Watauga County 
is $919,467.79. Upon receipt, the Board needs to order the Tax Collector to advertise these tax liens. According to 
the North Carolina statutes, the advertisement has to be published between March 1st and June 30th. We plan to 
advertise during the month of May, one time in the local newspaper, Watauga Democrat. Please let me know if you 
have any questions. 

 

050714 BCC Meeting

132



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Presentation of the FY 2015 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County Manager will present the FY 2015 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for your review 
prior to discussion during the upcoming budget work sessions. 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

133



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

134



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Presentation of the Manager’s FY 2015 Recommended Budget  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Manager will present his Recommended FY 2015 Budget at the meeting and review 
highlights.  If you have questions, please feel free to call or discuss at the budget work sessions 
scheduled for 4:00 P.M. on Thursday, May 8, 2014, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014. 
 
The Recommended Budget will be available for public inspection on the County’s website, in 
the County Manager’s Office, and at the public libraries located in Boone, Blowing Rock, and 
the Western Watauga Community Center.   
 
A public hearing will be held on May 20, 2014, at 6:00 P.M. to allow citizen comment on the 
proposed budget.  
 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

135



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

136



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Proposed Property & Liability Insurance and Workers Compensation Renewals 

Request 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Renewal rates for property and liability insurance and workers compensation will be presented 
for the Board’s consideration.  The rate for property and liability is $239,865, or a $7,650 
decrease, and the rate for workers compensation is $279,708 or a 14.52% increase.  The primary 
reason for the increase in workers compensation was the substantial rise in the rate modifier due 
to claims experience.  Based on prior years claims experience staff is recommending increasing 
the property deductible from $1,000 to $5,000.  
 
Board approval is requested to accept the renewals for property and liability insurance and 
workers compensation from the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners 
(NCACC), in the amount of $239,865 and $279,708 respectively.    
 
 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

137



050714 BCC Meeting

138



050714 BCC Meeting

139



050714 BCC Meeting

140



050714 BCC Meeting

141



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

142



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Tushar Bajaj, Friends Forever, is requesting the use of the old high school parking lot on 
May 23rd from 2:00 PM until 2:00 PM on May 26th.  The group is organizing a large event at the 
International Center for Mediation.  The Art of Living Foundation International Center for 
Meditation and Well Being previously requested and was granted permission to rent the parking 
lot at the old high school.  The Center was charged $300 a day for the use of the parking lot.  
 
Should the Board wish to grant Friends Forever’s request, staff would recommend a fee of $300 
per day for a total amount of $1,200.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

143



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Thursday, April 17, 2014 11:38 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Fwd: Old School Parking lot - Reservation Request

5-6-2014 agenda. 

Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Tushar Bajaj <tusharbajaj@gmail.com> 
Date: April 17, 2014 at 3:19:22 PM EDT 
To: <deron.geouque@watgov.org> 
Subject: Old School Parking lot - Reservation Request 

Hello Deron - Thank you for taking the time to speak with me this afternoon. 

I work with a Non-Profit organization "Friends Forever" and we are putting together a huge event at 
International Center for Meditation in Boone, NC over the Memorial Day weekend. We expect a crowd 
of over 1300 people coming in town for this event. It requires us to arrange for overflow parking spots to 
a nearby place.  The Retreat facility in Boone mentioned that I should reach out to you with this request. 
 
We would need the parking lot from 2 PM onwards on May 23rd until 2 PM on May 26th when the 
event ends. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Regards 
 
Tushar Bajaj 
 
512.535.3747 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Boards and Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Watauga County Economic Development Commission 
 

The Watauga County Economic Development Commission has four terms set to expire in June.  
Mr. Ed Evans, Mr. Tommy Sofield, and Mr. Ben Shoemake are each eligible and available for 
reappointment.  The fourth seat is not eligible for reappointment due to having served two 
consecutive terms. 
 
Region D Development Corporation 
 

The Region D Development Corporation is a Certified Development Company that assists the 
US Small Business Administration in delivering small business loans to the region.  They also 
assist in marketing and packaging loans for small businesses throughout the region.  Per their 
bylaws, each county is required to appoint four persons to serve as members of the Development 
Corporation in May of each year.  Representative categories are local government (1), private 
lending institution (1), and community organization or a business organization (2).  Following is 
a list of current appointees:  Mr. John Spear (Local Government); Mr. Brian Crutchfield 
(Community Organization); Mr. Jim Furman (Business Organization); and Mr. Brian Riggins 
(Private Lending Institution).  You may wish to reappoint those serving or appoint new 
members. 
 
Town of Boone Planning Commission 
 

The Boone Town Council has recommended appointment of Mr. Thomas Purpur as an ETJ 
member of the Town of Boone Planning Commission. 
 
Town of Boone Board of Adjustment 
 

The Boone Town Council has recommended appointment of Dr. Robert (Bob) Goddard as a 
Regular ETJ member of the Town of Boone Board of Adjustment. 
 
 
All the above are first readings and, therefore, no action is required at this time. 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

145



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Monday, April 28, 2014 11:21 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Boards and Commissions

Deron, 
Four terms on the Economic Development Commission will expire in June, as follows: 
Ed Evans 
Tommy Sofield 
Ben Shoemake 
Mary Hall 
These are three year terms. By rule, members can serve two consecutive appointed terms. Mr. Evans, Mr. Sofield, and Mr. 
Shoemake have each served one term and would like to be reappointed to another. Mrs. Hall has served two consecutive terms, 
so is not eligible for another. Thanks. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

146



REGION D DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, INC. 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: Region D Development Corporation Membership Appointmerits 

DATE: April24, 2014 

According to the By-Laws of the Region D Development Corporation, Boards of 
County Commissioners are requested each year to appoint four persons to serve as 
members of the Development Corporation. Of the four members appointed, one shall 
be a full-time employee (or retiree) of a private lending institution, one shall be a person 
designated as a local government representative, and two shall be representatives of 
business and community organizations. Please find enclosed a copy of the 2013-14 
member appointments. You may wish to reappoint these current members or to appoint 
new members. 

The Region D Development Corporation is a Certified Development Company (CDC), 
and patiners with lending institutions and the US Small Business Administration (SBA) 
to deliver the SBA 504 Loan Program. The Development Corporation contracts with 
Kendrick and Associates (Bob Kendrick, owner) for assistance in marketing and 
packaging loans for small businesses tlu·oughout the region. 

Please schedule these appointments for an upcoming board meeting, and notify me by 
mail or email of your appointments when they are made. With new appointments, 
please include their address, employment, email address, and telephone number. Thank 
you for your assistance. 

Please give me a call if you have any questions. 

Enclosure 

cc: Rick Herndon, Executive Director 

050714 BCC Meeting

147



Region D Development Corporation, Inc. 2013-14 Board of Directors 

Officers 
President Vacant 
Vice President Brian Crutchfield 
Secretary/Treasurer Johann Louchez 
Asst. Sec.!Treas. Phil Trew 

050714 BCC Meeting

148



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Kim Brown <Kim.Brown@townofboone.net>
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 12:25 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Town of Boone ETJ nominations
Attachments: Robert Goddard application.pdf; Thomas Purpur application.pdf

Good Afternoon Anita: 
  
At the regular meeting last week, the Boone Town Council made the following nominations for ETJ positions: 
  
Board of Adjustment (Regular ETJ member) - Dr. Robert (Bob) Goddard 
Planning Commission (ETJ member) - Thomas Purpur. 
  
Please forward these nominations on to the County Commissioners for consideration.  I am attaching the board applications for 
both nominees.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 
  
Thanks and have a great day! 
Kim 
 
Kimberly S. Brown, CMC 
Town Clerk 
Boone Town Hall 
PO Drawer 192 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828)268-6200/(828)268-6208 fax 
www.townofboone.net 
kim.brown@townofboone.net 
  
  
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to public records requests pursuant to the North Carolina Public Records Law, 
resulting in monitoring and potential disclosure of this message to third parties.  

050714 BCC Meeting

149



APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FORCE, 
ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE 

TOWN OF BOONE 

FULL NAME: JU. !loLSGt?.J(fSoB) . J}, .. 0ovv4.1Z:J2 
Trtle First Middle Imtral ~ Last 

(Mr./Ms./Ms./Dr., etc.) 

GENDER: __ M<-..!.... __ _ 

HOME ADDRESS: $Z;5EttE/J 01JKS .f/o, /{ooAJe; .Afc 28607 

PREFERRED CONTACT ADDRESS (if different from home address): 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

TELEPHONE: day: -----=:..-=....__.o....;._.___,o.._:,_-<-=.,----=--,;_;:_~ 

JURISDICTION OF RESIDENCE: Town of Boone --* Extra Territorial lW"isdiction (ETJ) 
__ Watauga County outside Town and ETJ 
__ Other (please identify): 

HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A RESIDENT Of THE ABOVE JURISDICTION: SA.JcF !9'?9 

DO YOU OWN REAL PROPERTY (land) IN THE TOWN OF BOONE: -.~ffiL....:.....:o ____ _ 

DO YOU OWN REAL PROPERTY IN THE ETJ: -.L-.~.::...:~3'=---------
NAME OF BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE 
APPOINTMENT SOUGHT (list one only): ? /J /. ) 

Q_a4.ep CJr ~.fVttSrm6'Air (~-A.P,P/1/NTNJtAJT 

WHY DO YOU WISH TO OBTAIN THIS APPOINTMENT? 
fa CoNTINVF ..5E-'!V!.AICi piE frwN /!JND /TS ~E..SJ.z;rEA/JS /N [t-IE 
, /IJ;:J.A.J;.Jbe- J HSve DONE Fo£ /7/e ?8.57-t:t=U/ 'fE'rlrfZS 

ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE TOWN'S 2006 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN? (It can be 
accessed at www.townofboone.net/departments/development/index.html): Y CT 

RATE YOUR SUPPORT FOR THE 2006 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (with" I" signifying no 
support and "1 0" signifying great supp01t): 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 G> 10 

PLEASE EXPLAIN YOUR LEVEL OF SUPPORT FOR THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: _ 
/J1.; E.XPE.tZJBVc.ES )IAI/E MI'9£>E JVJ G .S vP.PC/12J7Vc o ,;:: ,:J C oii'7AIZE='.NEn...rl tlt 
])EVE Lo,f?.Jnt: ;;1./r f'LAJI/, S UCI-I .19-:S :t7fE: LJ:tJO, A S .fll£:'.J..VC' ZUe;

...sA.EEST; /170..S T Eo t./.1 r~..5t.E /?7 z;= P./ tJrO o~ '"'0 V<:;?Z.:5t:::t;;~NG. ri/\JJtJ 
${).1.D/rA16; J;n::- vcLtJ.PmBr.JT or t::>.11Je t::J,;::= ovdZ mosr ,P:¢t::OtJ03 

p.S!J UdZ..C E3'.,. 

123 

050714 BCC Meeting

150



DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWN OR POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
(INCLUDING MEMBERSHIP IN ANY ORGANIZATION, YOUR EMPLOYMENT, AND 
THE MEMBERSHIPS AND EMPLOYMENT OF ANY FAMILY MEMBER) THAT MIGHT 
ARISE IF YOU ARE APPOINT~D? IF YES, PLEASE EXPLAIN: _______ _ 

Aft>- PET.JIZ£0 . 

HAVE YOU EVER BEFORE SERVED ON ANY TOWN BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK 
FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE. IF SO, PLEASE STATE THE NAME OF 
THE BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE, AND 
THE APPROXIMATE DATES OF SERVICE: :5~ r:J.J3ovg;. 

~~~~==~~------------------

IF YOU HAVE PREVIOUSLY SERVED ON A TOWN BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK 
FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE, PLrASE EXPLAIN THE QUALITY OF 
YOUR EXPERIENCE: qorletf!A.Itn5Nr ?UO.It:!.JG.S · COtNH ~oTCc.TJo.N u.AJJJti'.:£ J7fi: 

t./'Jto ~aeJOr .J /r /-f;::JS .:i3€l;'!':XJ NN o,PL I FTJNG Ei""XPC?gJ£"./\fCF Jt) ./5t:FNIZT 
C>r p:le- .Fv.BL tc. ,pE.f3t9 TC• We ,:ILL -w 11\J" t(.IJn( CtJ.-nPttt..EdSNS I I./ e 

I hereby certify that the foregoing answers are true, and that should I be appointed to the board, 
commission, task force, advisory body or committee, and should a conflict of interest exist or 
develop with regard to a specific matter, I will disclose the conflict of interest and recuse myself 
from the deliberations and action involved. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to: a 
direct or indirect financial interest by myself or a member of my family, and other interest which 
impairs my ability to participate fairly in the deliberations and actions in question. 

?JJ~c~JJ ~natm~ Date 

124 

050714 BCC Meeting

151



02-14- ' 14 09 :39 FROM-Maymead 423-727-2025 T-657 P0002/ 0005 F-600 

APPLICA'l10N FOR APPOINTMENT TO A BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FO:R.CB, 
ADVISORY BODY OR CO:tv1MIITEE 

TOWN OF BOONE 

FULL NAME: -rflnYJrtS {!. 
Title First 
(M.·./Ms:/Ms./Dr., etc.) 

Middle rDitial 

GENDER: /01~L£ 

HOME ADDRESS: -----'-1/s..-,Lf _ __ut!?....:.:'Z>=-· ~~ _ ___,A~t~~~~:.-=:rr~----=~~-~------
"]!<!01\J& N& Utod'l 

I 

PREFERRED CONTACT ADDRESS (if different from home address): 

TELEPHONE: day: rfz_S- 'JJ..t · Z-·o1J ; evening ---~:......=2-.;;..3 _- ..;..Lf...:...?_'/-_,/,'""'~'-'-1-'(,-

JURlSDICfXON OF RESIDENCE: Town of Boone 
--..LL..Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 
__ Watauga County outside 1'ow11 and ETJ 
__ Other (please ldentiey): 

HOW LONG HAVE YOU :SEEN A RESIDENT OF THE ABOVE ruRJSDICTION: /! /6/J.es ?tv<M. 1'b 
7Mfr ~ yell/IS 

DO YOU OWN REAL PROPERTY (land)~ THE TOWN OF BOONH: -~JJ=-=o'------

DO YOU OWN REAL PROPERTY IN THE ETJ: -~--')'!'--~--5 ___ __ _ 

NAME OF BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMl'ITEE 
APPOINTMENT SOUGHT (list one only): . . 
--------------------------~~~~~~~M~~~~N~·~~--~~~~m~t~SS~!~~H~~------
WHY DO YOU WISH TO OBTAlN THIS APPOINTMENT? 

(dm?lu>J ,'-r-v .s·t-AYJ·~.x- r [,'/rvi(C- 1}/c. 1s.t- Lf YG.!ltt.S 
t.H./t&.. 7'I!.AII.J /N(J f),J"t> /ir;W ::!; OUI"'- 7/)€. "17!ullll J1m_ /JI.tlr 

PV dldN6 
/'~oPL.tt.. 

ARE YOU FAMILWl Willi THE TOWN'S 2006 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN? (It can be 
~:;; \:.' ---?·accessed at www.towno1boone.neUdepartment!'/develop,rnent/lndex.btml): Y6:.C 

\~IQ v < 
.J§t'f 
~,-,(l\1, 

RATE YOUR SUPPORT FOR THE 2006 CO.N:IPREHENSIVE PLAN (wlth"l" signifYing no 
support and "10" signifYing great support): 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 10 

PLEASE EXPLAIN YODRLBVEL OF SUPPORT FOR Tl-IE COMPREBENSlVE PLAN: 
£ £tikJ.Y .SVN'6K"~' me:. Z>e.c~ges ror.!.. /2?JM.6 'baAJJ','rY 

/jtVg 11N:V6;"'& t?q,-~..?> h.Jr,..s ue t;u,.s~ n ·-rti.£ ~#fe. f"m0JJ. u 
/!No ?"Ntf- Alt.~ ?O wer>oR-"Y- · .t< 1 :z. :¢-r.·&la 5 AW::> .:c 

136 

050714 BCC Meeting

152



02-14-' 14 09 : 39 FRm1-Maymead 423-727-2025 T-657 P0003/0005 F-600 

WHAT SKILLS, EDUCATION, TRAINING. EXPERIENCE OR AREA(S) OF EXPERTISE 
WOULD YOU 'SlUNG TO THIS APPOINTMENT? J-I/IV6 /ltJ /?Jl;J1 J>h'~ · 

/f.fY6 /ltJ /kVO.Jt!tYI•'t-S. '<';b~n...t.C- ' !1/1'#- ']( (6//A.S fX.f?tyt£.-vu, IN ffwJ.::J 
C.~CIEf&,.£~T'iA> i :c. ,.slh: J.,J EMM.~.J . J$v4R<-"?;C j J. !11/vl- t'.l<.£Vt2V1 . 
?,;AN,-,hv& {A)iJ(f).!.SS•IJ>.J b<PM~.J~.NC.t;; I.A/oVL!:> L.,iJ:;t,. 1ii )7/IY .?N w~e(/'/llh\!Tft-1", 

HAVE YOU HAD ISSUBS WiTH THE TOWN OF BOONE WinCH RELATE TO THE 
WORK OF THE BODY TO WHICH YOU SEEK APPOINTMENT? IF YES, PLEASE 
EXPLAffi: =~====~==~~~~~--~~~======~====~====~· o 0 o • o • ,,.,.,, ' " o o o ooMo •••• ,,•••-•• • •~•-•••••••"- '''' ''""-'" OO• o o o '" ' "'"''''• -••• ,,, .. .,.,,,,,,, +O ooo , o o 0 0 0 0 0 o o o oooo oo ooo.o•-- - - • o o-.oo o o o o o o • • _.,, .. , ,.,,,,,, • -•• o ••-••••• o .. ,. • oooo oo ---........ - ......... .. ..... . 

DO YOU HAVE ANY KNOWN OR POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTER.l3ST 
(INCLUDING MEMBERSHIP IN ANY ORGANIZATION, YOUR EMPLOYMENT, AND 
THE MEMBERSHIPS AND EMPLOYMENT OF ANY FAMILY MEMBE){) THAT MIGHT 
ARISE 1F YOU ARB APPOINTED? IF YES, PLEASE EXPLAIN:----- ---

HAVE YOU EVER BEFORE SERVED ON ANY TOWN BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK 
FORCE, ADVfSORY BODY OR COMM!ITEE. IF SO, PLEASE STATE THE NAME OF 
THE BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITtEE, AND 
THB APPROXIMATE DATES OF SERVICE: ---,.--~YL=· ~::....,-~-------
---·-· ?t,I/IJAJ•;_,_f£..., CtJ?!' IT\ IS s: • tftJ (:_w=' ~=·Afr=wl'='c~f-) ----------

l.ct/1/"rt<-1!.. can1m1 "CTR&: 

IF YOU HAVE P:REVIOUSLY SERVED ON A TOWN BOARD, COMMISSION, TASK 
FORCE, ADVISORY BODY OR COMMITTEE, PLEASE EXPLAIN THE QUALITY OF 
YOUR EXPERIENCE:. 14t-u fir~ ?'Jts. r!/tf. ·tt~/"IAI'N~ C.f'm'?J;s.s ;w._ 

l-IAS (Jlf,LIJ IIUY {?.~1-1/rf~~.;,>:,;:V& .1 
L-t.!lr<vA"'i>' /..r Vtf.tt.Y £c..wAIL-btAII'J' _.1./::, 

tltte~£rlt-W /:V&A..mt>-':1!:. 7?'1-"~'~:~.fs; ldi.lf/ 4?~ /?JU.'uf 1s__A .&J't!<K-r 
(F -rl!ltr U~vl/lin·. TillY (-1/aTt!-fl.. Col'l'lt?J,-CC,(.(:, Is L.r/:.&L./tJ'i!._ 
J/Gil-Y £-f--lu trlirt:.A/;~6' · · 

I he1·eby cel'tify that the foregoing' answers are true, and that should I be appointed to tho board, 
commission, task force, advisory body or committeeJ a11<l should a conflict of interest exist O l' 

develop with regard to a specific matter, I will disclose the conflict of interest and recuse myself 
from the deliberations and aotion involved. Conflicts of interest include, but are not limited to: a 
direct or indirect financial interest by myself or a member of my family, and other interest whlch 
impairs my ability to participate fairly in the deliberations and actions in question,. 

137 

050714 BCC Meeting

153



Blank Page 
 
 

050714 BCC Meeting

154



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
F. Announcements 

 
Budget Work Sessions are scheduled for Thursday, May 8, and Tuesday, May 13, 2014; both 
beginning at 4:00 P.M.  The Work Sessions will be held in the Commissioners’ Board Room. 
 
 
 
Community Pride Week will be held May 12 – 17.  The week will conclude on May 17 with 
Household Hazardous Waste Day at the County Landfill from 9:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M. and 
Operation Medicine Cabinet at the three local Food Lion locations as well as Foscoe Fire 
Department from 10:00 A.M. until 2:00 P.M.  Please see the enclosed announcement for more 
details. 
 
 
 
Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute has invited the Board to a joint meeting on 
Wednesday, May 21, 2014, at 6:00 P.M. at the Watauga Instructional Facility on Hwy 105 
Bypass, Room 112. 
 
 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners shares the following links accessing 
their legislative update video for May which contains a preview of the upcoming legislative 
session, information about the NCACC Annual Conference and County Assembly Day, and a 
report on legal cases impacting counties: 
 

YouTube: http://youtu.be/0liLj8bWrWg 
    

Google Drive: https://drive.google.com/file/d/0Bx6fC1oKngQQandkakJ2R21kbHM/edit?usp=sharing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

050714 BCC Meeting

155

http://youtu.be/0liLj8bWrWg
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0Bx6fC1oKngQQandkakJ2R21kbHM/edit?usp=sharing


050714 BCC Meeting

156



050714 BCC Meeting

157



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

050714 BCC Meeting

158


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the May 7, 2014, Agenda
	Board of Education’s Request for Lottery Funds
	Appalachian Theatre of the High Country Request
	Proposed Audit Contract for FY 2014
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Bid Award Request for Asphalt Sealing & Stiping Project
	B.  Bid Award Request for AEC Renovation Project
	C.  Bid Award Request for Medic Base Architectural Services 
	D.  Contract Renewal Request for P&R Weekend Janitorial Services

	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds & Releases
	C.  Unpaid Real Estate Tax Bills

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Presentation of the FY 2015 CIP
	B.  Presentation of the Manager's FY 2015 Recommended Budget
	C.  Proposed Property & Liability Insurance & Workers Comp Renewals Request
	D.  Request for Use of Old High School Parking Lot
	E.  Boards & Commissions
	F.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



